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                                     PART I 
 
ITEM 1. BUSINESS 
 
OVERVIEW 
 
    We are an asset management company with equity investments in a diverse 
group of mid-sized investment management firms (our "Affiliates"). As of 
December 31, 2001, our affiliated investment management firms managed 
approximately $81.0 billion in assets across a broad range of investment styles 
and in three principal distribution channels (High Net Worth, Mutual Fund and 
Institutional). We pursue a growth strategy designed to generate shareholder 
value through the internal growth of existing Affiliates, investments in 
additional, mid-sized investment management firms, and strategic transactions 
and relationships designed to enhance our Affiliates' businesses and growth 
prospects. 
 
    In our investments in Affiliates, we typically hold a majority equity 
interest in each firm, with the remaining equity interests retained by the 
management of the Affiliate. Our investment approach addresses the succession 
and ownership transition issues facing the founders and principal owners of many 
mid-sized investment management firms by allowing them to preserve their firm's 
entrepreneurial culture and independence and to continue to participate in their 
firm's success. In particular, our structure: 
 
    - maintains and enhances Affiliate managers' equity incentives in their 



      firms; 
 
    - allows Affiliate managers to retain operational autonomy, thereby 
      preserving each Affiliate's distinct culture and investment focus; and 
 
    - provides Affiliates with the ability to realize the benefits of scale 
      economies in distribution, operations and technology. 
 
    Although we invest in firms that we anticipate will grow independently and 
without our assistance, we are committed to helping Affiliates identify 
opportunities for growth and leverage the benefits of economies of scale. While 
preserving each Affiliate's unique culture and operating autonomy, we assist our 
Affiliates by broadening distribution channels, by developing new products and 
by offering strategic support and operational enhancements. 
 
    We believe that a substantial number of opportunities to make investments in 
mid-sized investment management firms will continue to arise as their founders 
approach retirement age and begin to plan for succession. Our management 
identifies and develops relationships with promising potential firms based on a 
thorough understanding of the universe of such firms derived from our 
proprietary database that includes information from third party vendors, public 
and industry sources and our own research. Within our target universe, we seek 
the strongest and most stable firms with the best growth prospects, which are 
typically characterized by a strong multi-generational management team and 
culture of commitment to building a firm for its longer-term success, focused 
investment discipline and long-term investment track record, and diverse 
products and distribution channels. 
 
INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT OPERATIONS 
 
    Our Affiliates provide investment management services in three principal 
distribution channels: High Net Worth, Mutual Fund and Institutional. Through 
these distribution channels, our affiliated investment management firms offer 
more than 150 products across a broad range of investment styles and asset 
classes. We believe that this diversification helps to mitigate our exposure to 
the risks created by changing market environments. 
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    A summary of selected financial data attributable to our operations follows: 
 
(IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT AS NOTED) 1999 2000 2001 - -----------
------------------- -------- -------- -------- ASSETS UNDER

MANAGEMENT (IN BILLIONS)(1) High Net
Worth.............................................. $ 16.1

$ 22.2 $ 24.6 Mutual
Fund................................................. 7.4

9.3 14.4
Institutional...............................................

58.5 46.0 42.0 ------ ------ ------
Total................................................... $
82.0 $ 77.5 $ 81.0 ====== ====== ====== REVENUE High Net

Worth.............................................. $177.9
$138.9 $133.8 Mutual

Fund................................................. 76.4
97.4 113.6

Institutional...............................................
264.4 222.4 160.8 ------ ------ ------

Total...................................................
$518.7 $458.7 $408.2 ====== ====== ====== NET INCOME(2)

High Net
Worth.............................................. $ 28.8

$ 19.4 $ 18.6 Mutual
Fund................................................. 11.5

12.7 15.6
Institutional...............................................

31.9 24.6 15.8 ------ ------ ------
Total................................................... $
72.2 $ 56.7 $ 50.0 ====== ====== ====== EBITDA(3) High Net
Worth.............................................. $ 63.3

$ 46.5 $ 45.1 Mutual
Fund................................................. 29.0

32.4 38.8
Institutional...............................................

74.5 63.5 48.2 ------ ------ ------
Total.......................................................

$166.8 $142.4 $132.1 ====== ====== ======
 
 
    HIGH NET WORTH DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL 
 



    Affiliate clients in the High Net Worth distribution channel include wealthy 
individuals, family trusts and managed accounts at brokerage firms that are 
attributable to individuals. Through our Affiliates, we provide customized 
investment management services for high net worth individuals and families 
through direct relationships, as well as through more than 90 managed account 
("wrap") programs. 
 
    Our two largest Affiliates (based on pro forma 2001 EBITDA) in the High Net 
Worth distribution channel are: 
 
    - Rorer Asset Management, LLC ("Rorer"), a Philadelphia-based investment 
      adviser that employs a disciplined relative value investment process in 
      managing equity portfolios; and 
 
    - Tweedy, Browne Company LLC ("Tweedy, Browne"), a New York-based investment 
      adviser that employs a value-oriented investment approach advocated by 
      Benjamin Graham to invest in global and domestic securities. 
 
- ------------------------ 
 
(1)  Balances as of December 31. 
 
(2)  Note 18 to our Consolidated Financial Statements describes the basis of 
     presentation of our distribution channel operating results. 
 
(3)  EBITDA represents earnings before interest expense, income taxes, 
     depreciation and amortization. We believe EBITDA may be useful to investors 
     as an indicator of our ability to service debt, make new investments and 
     meet working capital requirements. EBITDA is not a measure of financial 
     performance under generally accepted accounting principles and should not 
     be considered an alternative to net income as a measure of operating 
     performance or to cash flows from operating activities as a measure of 
     liquidity. EBITDA, as calculated by us, may not be consistent with 
     computations of EBITDA by other companies. For purposes of our distribution 
     channel operating results, holding company expenses have been allocated 
     based on the EBITDA Contribution (as defined on page 21) from each 
     distribution channel. 
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    In addition, Welch & Forbes LLC, a Boston-based investment adviser described 
in further detail below, and Gofen and Glossberg, L.L.C., a Chicago-based 
investment counseling firm, focus on providing investment management services in 
the High Net Worth distribution channel. 
 
    In March 2001, we purchased a minority interest in Dublin Fund Distributors, 
N.V., the parent company of Edgehill Select Group, L.L.C. and Edgehill Select 
Group, S.A.R.L. (collectively, "Dublin Fund Distributors"). Dublin Fund 
Distributors, which is based in New York and Paris (and operates under the name 
DFD Select Group), is the sponsor of an Irish-registered and listed umbrella 
trust of hedge funds for which it selects independent sub-advisers. Dublin Fund 
Distributors markets to institutions in the international marketplace, primarily 
pension funds, banks, insurance companies and funds of funds. Our investment in 
Dublin Fund Distributors provides our Affiliates an opportunity to expand their 
international hedge fund clientele, or to access this segment of the High Net 
Worth distribution channel for the first time. Dublin Fund Distributors 
currently distributes investment products managed by Essex Investment Management 
Company, LLC ("Essex") and Frontier Capital Management Company, LLC 
("Frontier"). 
 
    In November 2001, we completed our most recent investment in the High Net 
Worth distribution channel by acquiring a 60% interest in Welch & Forbes, Inc. 
and Welch & Forbes (a partnership) (collectively, "Welch & Forbes"). Welch & 
Forbes' management retained the remaining equity. Established in 1838, Welch & 
Forbes provides customized investment advisory and fiduciary services to a range 
of clients including personal trusts, high net worth families and charitable 
foundations. Client portfolios are tailored to meet each client's objectives, 
and are invested in a range of quality growth equity securities, fixed income 
securities and venture capital investments. Welch & Forbes also provides estate 
and tax services for its clients. 
 
    In January 2002, we launched our first multi-Affiliate product that allows 
sponsors to offer investors a series of portfolios, each managed by multiple 
independent Affiliates that employ separate and distinct investment styles. 
Together, the portfolios create a spectrum of asset, style and risk allocations 
designed to meet the investment goals of a wide range of separate account 
investors and provide investors an opportunity to access a diverse group of 
independently managed products in a single account, at a reasonable asset level. 
First Union Securities is the first financial services firm to enter into an 
agreement with us to market the product through its nationwide network of more 
than 8,000 registered representatives. 



 
    MUTUAL FUND DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL 
 
    Through our Affiliates, we provide advisory or sub-advisory services to 27 
mutual funds. These funds are distributed to retail and institutional clients 
directly and through intermediaries, including independent investment advisers, 
retirement plan sponsors, broker-dealers, major fund marketplaces and bank trust 
departments. 
 
    Our two largest Affiliates (based on pro forma 2001 EBITDA) in the Mutual 
Fund distribution channel are: 
 
    - Tweedy, Browne, which advises two mutual funds: Tweedy, Browne Global 
      Value Fund and Tweedy, Browne American Value Fund; and 
 
    - Friess Associates, LLC ("Friess"), a growth equity investment manager 
      based in Delaware, Wyoming and Arizona, described in further detail below. 
 
    In addition, The Managers Funds LLC ("Managers"), a Norwalk, 
Connecticut-based adviser to two families of no-load mutual funds, The Managers 
Funds and Managers AMG Funds, and Skyline Asset Management, L.P. ("Skyline"), a 
Chicago-based small-cap equity manager to the Skyline Special Equities 
Portfolio, focus on providing investment management services in the Mutual Fund 
distribution channel. 
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    We acquired Managers in 1999 to expand our business in the Mutual Fund 
distribution channel, and to support the growth and operations of our Affiliates 
by providing them a cost-effective way to access the Mutual Fund distribution 
channel. With Managers, we formed Managers AMG Funds, a no-load mutual fund 
family distributed to retail and institutional clients directly by Managers and 
through intermediaries. There are currently seven series in this family of 
funds: Essex Aggressive Growth Fund, Frontier Growth Fund, Frontier Small 
Company Value Fund, First Quadrant Tax-Managed Equity Fund, Rorer Large Cap 
Fund, Rorer Mid Cap Fund and Systematic Value Fund. 
 
    In October 2001, we completed our most recent investment in the Mutual Fund 
distribution channel by acquiring a 51% interest in Friess, with Friess 
management retaining the remaining equity. Friess advises three growth equity 
mutual funds: Brandywine Fund, Brandywine Advisers Fund and Brandywine Blue 
Fund. Friess manages growth equity accounts with a discipline that focuses on 
companies whose earnings are typically growing by at least 20% per year and 
whose stocks sell at reasonable price-to-earnings ratios. 
 
    INSTITUTIONAL DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL 
 
    Through our Affiliates, we offer investment products across 16 different 
investment styles in the Institutional distribution channel, including small, 
small/mid, mid and large capitalization value and growth equity. Through this 
distribution channel, we manage assets for foundations and endowments, defined 
benefit and defined contribution plans for corporations and municipalities and 
Taft-Hartley plans. 
 
    Our two largest Affiliates (based on pro forma 2001 EBITDA) in the 
Institutional distribution channel are: 
 
    - Essex, a Boston-based investment adviser that specializes in growth equity 
      portfolios and employs fundamental research combined with active portfolio 
      management; and 
 
    - Frontier, a Boston-based firm that specializes in both growth and value 
      equity portfolios and employs a disciplined stock selection process driven 
      by intensive internal research. 
 
    In addition, Systematic Financial Management, L.P., a New Jersey-based 
investment adviser that specializes in value equity portfolios, and Davis 
Hamilton Jackson & Associates, L.P., a Houston-based investment adviser that 
specializes in large and mid-cap growth equities and fixed income securities, 
focus on providing investment management services in the Institutional 
distribution channel. 
 
    In 2001, we worked closely with our Affiliates in evaluating their 
institutional marketing and client service initiatives in an effort to ensure 
that their products and services were successfully addressing the competitive 
demands of the market place. Specifically, we provided our Affiliates with 
resources to improve sales and marketing materials, to facilitate networking 
opportunities with the pension consultant and plan sponsor communities and to 
establish new distribution alternatives. This process gave our Affiliates the 
opportunity to tailor an appropriate call program for their products in each 
segment of the Institutional distribution channel. 



 
    In addition, we significantly enhanced the web-based Client Service Platform 
through which Affiliates may service their clients, including clients in the 
Institutional distribution channel. Platform features include secure access to 
account and portfolio information and the ability for each Affiliate to 
customize its client service internet presence. Affiliates are able to employ 
leading-edge technology while saving money and time by customizing our offering 
rather than developing their own web-based client communication platform. 
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OUR STRUCTURE AND RELATIONSHIP WITH AFFILIATES 
 
    While we structure our investments in various ways, our principal investment 
structure involves the purchase of majority interests in our Affiliates. Each 
Affiliate is organized as a separate and largely autonomous limited liability 
company or limited partnership. Each Affiliate operating agreement is tailored 
to meet the particular characteristics of the Affiliate. In each Affiliate's 
organizational documents, we delegate to the Affiliate's management team the 
power and authority to carry on the day-to-day operations and management of the 
Affiliate. We generally retain the authority to prevent specified types of 
actions that we believe could adversely affect cash distributions to us, as well 
as the authority to cause certain types of actions to protect our interests. 
 
    Many of our Affiliates' organizational documents include revenue sharing 
arrangements. Each such revenue sharing arrangement allocates a percentage of 
revenue (typically 50-70%) for use by management of that Affiliate in paying 
operating expenses of the Affiliate, including salaries and bonuses. We call 
this the "Operating Allocation." We determine the percentage of revenue 
designated as Operating Allocation for each Affiliate in consultation with 
senior management of the Affiliate at the time of our investment based on the 
Affiliate's historical and projected operating margins. The organizational 
document of each such Affiliate allocates the remaining portion of the 
Affiliate's revenue (typically 30-50%) to the owners of that Affiliate 
(including us). We call this the "Owners' Allocation." Each Affiliate 
distributes its Owners' Allocation to its managers and to us generally in 
proportion to their and our respective ownership interests in that Affiliate. 
 
    Before reaching agreement on these allocations, we examine the revenue and 
expense base of the firm. We only agree to a division of revenue if we believe 
that the Operating Allocation will cover operating expenses of the Affiliate, 
including a potential increase in expenses or decrease in revenue without a 
corresponding decrease in operating expenses. While our management has 
significant experience in the asset management industry, we cannot be certain 
that we will successfully anticipate changes in the revenue and expense base of 
any firm. Therefore, we cannot be certain that the agreed-upon Operating 
Allocation will be large enough to pay for all of an Affiliate's operating 
expenses, including salaries and bonuses of its principals and employees. 
 
    One of the purposes of our revenue sharing arrangements is to provide 
ongoing incentives for Affiliate managers by allowing them: 
 
    - to participate in the growth of their firm's revenue, which may increase 
      their compensation from the Operating Allocation, and their distributions 
      from the Owners' Allocation; and 
 
    - to control operating expenses, thereby increasing the portion of the 
      Operating Allocation which is available for growth initiatives and 
      compensation. 
 
    An Affiliate's managers therefore have incentives to increase revenue 
(thereby increasing the Operating Allocation and their share of the Owners' 
Allocation) and to control expenses (thereby increasing the amount of Operating 
Allocation available for their compensation). 
 
    The revenue sharing arrangements allow us to participate in the revenue 
growth of each Affiliate because we receive a portion of the additional revenue 
as our share of the Owners' Allocation. We participate in that growth to a 
lesser extent than the Affiliate's managers, however, because we do not share in 
the growth of the Operating Allocation or in any increases in profit margin. 
 
    In certain other cases (such as, for example, Managers), the Affiliate is 
not subject to a revenue sharing arrangement, but instead operates on a 
profit-based model. As a result, we participate fully in any increase or 
decrease in the revenue or expenses of such firms. 
 
    Under the organizational documents of each Affiliate, the allocations and 
distributions of cash to us generally have priority over the allocations and 
distributions to the Affiliate's managers. This priority helps to protect us if 
there are any expenses in excess of the Operating Allocation of an Affiliate. 
Thus, 
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if an Affiliate's expenses exceed its Operating Allocation, the excess expenses 
first reduce the portion of the Owners' Allocation allocated to the Affiliate's 
managers until that portion is eliminated, and then reduce the portion allocated 
to us. Any such reduction in our portion of the Owners' Allocation is required 
to be paid back to us out of the portion of future Owners' Allocation allocated 
to the Affiliate's managers. As noted above, since we own substantially all of 
Managers, we participate fully in any increase or decrease in its revenue or 
expenses. 
 
    OUR PURCHASE OF ADDITIONAL INTERESTS IN OUR EXISTING AFFILIATES 
 
    Under our transaction structure, the management team at each Affiliate 
retains an ownership interest in that Affiliate. We consider this a key way that 
we provide our Affiliates' managers with incentives to grow their firms as well 
as align their interests with ours. In order to further increase these 
incentives, we include in the organizational documents of each Affiliate (other 
than Paradigm Asset Management Company, L.L.C., in which we own a minority 
interest) "put" rights for its managers. The put rights require us, from time to 
time and at the request of an Affiliate's manager, to buy portions of his or her 
interests in the Affiliate. In this way, an Affiliate's managers can realize a 
portion of the equity value that they have created in their firm. In addition, 
organizational documents of some of our Affiliates provide us with "call" rights 
that permit us to require an Affiliates' managers to sell us portions of their 
interests in the Affiliate. Finally, the organizational documents of each 
Affiliate include provisions obligating each manager to sell his or her 
remaining interests to us at a point in the future, generally after the 
termination of his or her employment. The purchase price for these transactions 
is generally based on a multiple of the Affiliate's Owners' Allocation at the 
time the right is exercised, which is intended to represent fair value. We pay 
for these purchases in cash, shares of our Common Stock or other forms of 
consideration. Underlying these provisions is our basic philosophy that the 
managers of each Affiliate should maintain an ownership level in that Affiliate 
within a range that offers them sufficient incentives to grow and improve their 
business to create equity value for themselves. 
 
    The put rights are designed to permit an Affiliate's managers to sell 
portions of their retained ownership to us. Instead of our purchase of a 
manager's interest in the Affiliate occurring only in the event of the 
termination of his or her employment, the put rights are designed to result in 
our purchase of additional interests in our Affiliates at a more gradual rate. 
We believe that our more gradual purchase of interests in Affiliates will 
enhance our ability to keep our ownership of each Affiliate within a desired 
range. We intend to continue providing equity participation opportunities in our 
Affiliates to more junior members of their management as well as to new key 
employees. 
 
    In most cases, the put rights do not become exercisable for a period of 
several years from the date of our investment in an Affiliate. Once exercisable, 
the put rights generally are limited in the aggregate to a percentage of a 
manager's ownership interest. The most common formulation among the Affiliates 
is that a manager's put rights: 
 
    - do not commence until five years after the date of our investment (or, if 
      later, the date he or she purchased his or her interest in the Affiliate); 
 
    - are limited, in the aggregate, to 50% of his or her interests in the 
      Affiliate; and 
 
    - are limited, in any 12-month period, to 10% of the greatest interest he or 
      she held in the Affiliate. 
 
    In addition, the organizational documents of the Affiliates often contain a 
limitation on the maximum total amount that management of any Affiliate may 
require us to purchase pursuant to their put rights in any 12-month period. 
 
    The call rights are designed to provide a procedure for us and the managers 
of some of our Affiliates to facilitate a transition within the senior 
management team after an agreed-upon period of 
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time. The call rights vary in each specific instance, but in all cases the 
timing and procedure are agreed upon when we make our investment. 
 
    The organizational documents of the Affiliates generally provide that an 
Affiliate's managers will realize the remaining equity value that they have 
created following the termination of their employment with the Affiliate. In 
general, upon a manager's retirement after an agreed-upon number of years, or 



upon his or her earlier death, permanent incapacity or termination without cause 
(but with our consent), he or she is required to sell to us (and we are required 
to purchase) his or her remaining interests. If an Affiliate collects any 
key-man life insurance or lump-sum disability insurance proceeds upon the death 
or permanent incapacity of a manager, the Affiliate generally must use that 
money to purchase his or her interests. A purchase by an Affiliate would have 
the effect of ratably increasing our ownership percentage as well as that of 
each of its remaining managers. By contrast, the purchase of interests by us 
only increases our ownership percentage. 
 
DIVERSIFICATION OF ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT AND EBITDA 
 
    The following table provides information regarding the composition of our 
assets under management and EBITDA for the year ended December 31, 2001. 
 
Year Ended December 31, 2001 ------------------
-------------------------------------- ASSETS

UNDER PERCENTAGE PRO FORMA PERCENTAGE
MANAGEMENT OF TOTAL EBITDA(1) OF TOTAL --------
----- ---------- -------------- ---------- (IN
MILLIONS) (IN THOUSANDS) DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL:

High net
worth.................................. $24,560

30% $ 51,628 33% Mutual
fund.....................................

14,456 18% 52,645 33%
Institutional...................................
41,990 52% 54,184 34% ------- --- -------- ---
Total.......................................

$81,006 100% $158,457 100% ======= === ========
=== ASSET CLASS:

Equity..........................................
$71,682 88% $152,119 96% Fixed

income....................................
5,549 7% 4,754 3%

Other...........................................
3,775 5% 1,584 1% ------- --- -------- ---

Total.......................................
$81,006 100% $158,457 100% ======= === ========

=== GEOGRAPHY:
Domestic........................................

$62,466 77% $125,181 79%
Global..........................................
18,540 23% 33,276 21% ------- --- -------- ---
Total.......................................

$81,006 100% $158,457 100% ======= === ========
===

 
 
INDUSTRY 
 
    Although domestic equity markets have experienced continued volatility and 
steep declines over the 21-month period ended December 31, 2001, the asset 
management industry has experienced strong growth over the last five years. 
 
    We believe that the asset management industry will continue to grow, and 
that such growth will be realized at different rates in the three principal 
distribution channels for our Affiliates' products. For example, a recent study 
predicts that the number of individuals with $500,000 to $5 million in 
investable assets, which was estimated to be 6.4 million in 1999, will grow to 
9.6 million by 2005. We 
 
- ------------------------ 
 
(1)  EBITDA as defined in Note (3) on page 2. EBITDA amounts are pro forma to 
     include our Friess and Welch & Forbes investments as if they occurred on 
     January 1, 2001. Our Friess investment closed on October 31, 2001, and our 
     Welch & Forbes investment closed on November 19, 2001. 
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believe that this projected trend will result in the continued growth of the 
asset management industry within the High Net Worth distribution channel. 
Further, we anticipate that the evolution of so-called "open architecture" 
arrangements between asset managers and unaffiliated distribution organizations 
will continue to have a positive impact on independent investment management 
organizations. 
 
    In addition, demographic trends are expected to continue to have a favorable 
impact on the growth in retirement assets. One financial services institution 
predicts that private retirement assets will grow to $11.2 trillion by 2005, 



compared to $7.0 trillion in 2000 and $4.0 trillion in 1995. While the 
individual retirement account market (the assets of which are typically invested 
in mutual funds) is anticipated to grow at the fastest rate, the defined 
contribution market is expected to grow 11.8% over that period, and the defined 
benefit market (which is a principal component of the Institutional channel) is 
expected to grow 8.0%. As another example of the anticipated growth in the 
Institutional channel, one study predicts that endowment and foundation assets 
(which were approximately $800 billion in 2000) are expected to grow at an 
annual rate of 8.0% through 2005. 
 
INVESTMENT ADVISERS 
 
    Our principal targeted size range for prospective Affiliates is 
$500 million to $15 billion of assets under management. Within this size range, 
we have identified more than 1,300 investment management firms in the United 
States, Canada and the United Kingdom. We believe that, in the coming years, a 
substantial number of investment opportunities will arise as founders of such 
firms approach retirement age and begin to plan for succession. We also 
anticipate that there will be significant additional investment opportunities 
among firms that are currently wholly owned by larger entities. We believe that 
we are well positioned to take advantage of these investment opportunities 
because we have a management team with substantial industry experience and 
expertise in structuring and negotiating transactions, and an organized process 
for identifying and contacting investment prospects. 
 
COMPETITION 
 
    In each of the three principal distribution channels, our Affiliates compete 
with a large number of domestic and foreign investment management firms, 
including public companies, subsidiaries of commercial banks and insurance 
companies. In comparison to any of our Affiliates, most of these firms have 
greater resources and assets under management, and many offer a broader array of 
investment products and services. Since certain Affiliates are active in the 
same distribution channels, from time to time they may compete with each other 
for clients. In addition, there are relatively few barriers to entry by new 
investment management firms, especially in the Institutional distribution 
channel. We believe that the most important factors affecting our Affiliates' 
ability to compete for clients in the three principal distribution channels are: 
 
    - the products offered; 
 
    - the abilities, performance records and reputation of the Affiliates and 
      their management teams; 
 
    - the management fees charged; 
 
    - the level of client service offered; and 
 
    - the development of new investment strategies and the marketing of such 
      strategies. 
 
    The relative importance of each of these factors can vary depending on the 
type of investment management service involved. Each Affiliate's ability to 
retain and increase assets under management would be adversely affected if 
client accounts underperform in comparison to relevant benchmarks, or if key 
personnel leave the Affiliate. The ability of each Affiliate to compete with 
other investment management firms also depends, in part, on the relative 
attractiveness of its investment philosophies and methods under then-prevailing 
market conditions. 
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    A component of our growth strategy is the acquisition of equity interests in 
mid-sized investment management firms. In seeking to make such acquisitions, we 
compete with many acquirers of investment management firms, including other 
investment management holding companies, insurance companies, broker-dealers, 
banks and private equity firms. Many of these companies have longer operating 
histories and greater resources than we do, which may make them more attractive 
to the owners of firms in which we are considering an investment and may enable 
them to offer greater consideration to such owners. We believe that important 
factors affecting our ability to compete for future investments are: 
 
    - the degree to which target firms view our investment structure as 
      preferable, financially and operationally, to acquisition or investment 
      arrangements offered by other potential purchasers; and 
 
    - the reputation and performance of our existing and future Affiliates, by 
      which target firms may judge us and our future prospects. 
 
GOVERNMENT REGULATION 
 



    Our Affiliates' businesses are highly regulated, primarily by U.S. federal 
authorities and to a lesser extent by other authorities, including non-U.S. 
authorities. The failure of our Affiliates to comply with laws or regulations 
could result in fines, suspensions of individual employees or other sanctions, 
including revocation of an Affiliate's registration as an investment adviser, 
commodity trading advisor or broker/dealer. Each of our Affiliates is registered 
as an investment adviser with the Securities and Exchange Commission under the 
Investment Advisers Act of 1940, as amended (the "Investment Advisers Act"), and 
is subject to the provisions of the Investment Advisers Act and related 
regulations. The Investment Advisers Act requires registered investment advisers 
to comply with numerous obligations, including record keeping requirements, 
operational procedures and disclosure obligations. We do not directly engage in 
the business of providing investment advice and therefore are not registered as 
an investment adviser. Our Affiliates are also subject to regulation under the 
securities and fiduciary laws of various states. Moreover, many of our 
Affiliates act as advisers or sub-advisers to mutual funds, which are registered 
as investment companies with the Securities and Exchange Commission pursuant to 
the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended (the "1940 Act"). As an adviser 
or sub-adviser to a registered investment company, each of these Affiliates must 
comply with the requirements of the 1940 Act and related regulations. In 
addition, an adviser or sub-adviser to a registered investment company generally 
has obligations with respect to the qualification of the registered investment 
company under the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (the "Code"). 
 
    Our Affiliates are also subject to the Employee Retirement Income Security 
Act of 1974, as amended ("ERISA"), and related regulations, to the extent they 
are "fiduciaries" under ERISA with respect to some of their clients. ERISA and 
related provisions of the Code impose duties on persons who are fiduciaries 
under ERISA, and prohibit certain transactions involving the assets of each 
ERISA plan which is a client of an Affiliate, as well as some transactions by 
the fiduciaries (and several other related parties) to such plans. Two of our 
Affiliates, First Quadrant, L.P. and The Renaissance Group LLC, are also 
registered with the Commodity Futures Trading Commission as commodity trading 
advisors and are members of the National Futures Association. Finally, Tweedy, 
Browne and a subsidiary of Managers are registered under the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, as amended, as broker-dealers and, therefore, are subject to 
extensive regulation relating to sales methods, trading practices, the use and 
safekeeping of customers' funds and securities, capital structure, record 
keeping and the conduct of directors, officers and employees. 
 
    Furthermore, the Investment Advisers Act and the 1940 Act provide that each 
investment management contract under which our Affiliates manage assets for 
other parties either terminates automatically if assigned, or states that it is 
not assignable without consent. In general, the term 
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"assignment" includes not only direct assignments, but also indirect assignments 
which may be deemed to occur upon the direct or indirect transfer of a 
"controlling block" of our voting securities or the voting securities of one of 
our Affiliates. The 1940 Act further provides that all investment contracts with 
mutual fund clients may be terminated by such clients, without penalty, upon no 
later than 60 days' notice. 
 
    Several of our affiliated investment management firms are also subject to 
the laws of non-U.S. jurisdictions and non-U.S. regulatory agencies. For 
example, First Quadrant Limited, located in London, is a member of the 
Investment Management Regulatory Organization of the United Kingdom, and some of 
our other affiliated investment management organizations are investment advisers 
to funds which are organized under non-U.S. jurisdictions, including Luxembourg 
(where the funds are regulated by the Institute Monetaire Luxembourgeois), 
Bermuda (where the funds are regulated by the Bermuda Monetary Authority) and 
Ireland (where the funds are regulated by the Central Bank of Ireland). In 
addition, Dublin Fund Distributors distributes funds (some which are managed by 
our Affiliates) in a variety of foreign jurisdictions. Dublin Fund Distributors 
and any of our affiliated investment management firms that manage such funds are 
therefore subject to the securities laws governing the investment management and 
distribution of such funds in the applicable jurisdictions. 
 
    The foregoing laws and regulations generally grant supervisory agencies and 
bodies broad administrative powers, including the power to limit or restrict any 
of the Affiliates from conducting their business in the event that they fail to 
comply with such laws and regulations. Possible sanctions that may be imposed in 
the event of such noncompliance include the suspension of individual employees, 
limitations on the Affiliate's business activities for specified periods of 
time, revocation of the Affiliate's registration as an investment adviser, 
commodity trading advisor and/or other registrations, and other censures and 
fines. Changes in these laws or regulations could have a material adverse impact 
on our profitability and mode of operations. 
 
    Our officers, directors and employees and the officers and employees of each 



of the Affiliates may own securities that are also owned by one or more of the 
Affiliates' clients. We and each Affiliate have internal policies with respect 
to individual investments that require reports of certain securities 
transactions and restrict certain transactions so as to minimize possible 
conflicts of interest. 
 
EMPLOYEES AND CORPORATE ORGANIZATION 
 
    As of December 31, 2001, we had 41 employees and our Affiliates employed 
approximately 754 persons. Approximately 761 of these 795 employees were 
full-time employees. Neither we nor any of our Affiliates is subject to any 
collective bargaining agreements, and we believe that our labor relations are 
good. We were formed in 1993 as a corporation under the laws of the State of 
Delaware. 
 
CORPORATE LIABILITY AND INSURANCE 
 
    Our Affiliates' operations entail the inherent risk of liability related to 
litigation from clients and actions taken by regulatory agencies. In addition, 
we face liability both directly as a control person of our Affiliates, and 
indirectly as a general partner of certain of our Affiliates. To protect our 
overall operations from such liability, we maintain errors and omissions and 
general liability insurance in amounts which we and our Affiliates consider 
appropriate. There can be no assurance, however, that a claim or claims will not 
exceed the limits of available insurance coverage, that any insurer will remain 
solvent and will meet its obligations to provide coverage, or that such coverage 
will continue to be available with sufficient limits or at a reasonable cost. A 
judgment against one of our Affiliates in excess of available coverage could 
have a material adverse effect on us. 
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CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS 
 
   WE EXPECT THAT WE WILL NEED TO RAISE ADDITIONAL CAPITAL IN THE FUTURE, AND 
   THERE CAN BE NO ASSURANCE THAT EXISTING OR FUTURE RESOURCES FOR SUCH CAPITAL 
   WILL BE AVAILABLE TO US IN SUFFICIENT AMOUNTS OR ON ACCEPTABLE TERMS. 
 
    While we believe that our existing cash resources and cash flow from 
operations will be sufficient to meet our working capital needs for normal 
operations for the foreseeable future, our continuing acquisitions of interests 
in new affiliated investment management firms will require additional capital. 
We may also need to repurchase some or all of our outstanding zero coupon 
convertible notes on various dates commencing May 7, 2002, and we have 
obligations to purchase additional equity in existing Affiliates, which 
obligations will be triggered from time to time. These obligations may require 
more cash than is available from operations. Thus, we may need to raise capital 
by making additional borrowings or by selling shares of our stock or other 
equity or debt securities, or to otherwise refinance a portion of these 
obligations. These financing activities could increase our interest expense, 
decrease our net income and dilute the interests of our existing stockholders. 
Moreover, there can be no assurance that we will be able to obtain such 
financing on acceptable terms, if at all. 
 
    REVOLVING CREDIT FACILITY.  We currently have a revolving credit facility 
under which we had outstanding borrowings of $25 million as of December 31, 2001 
and the ability to borrow up to an additional $305 million. Although we have the 
option, with the consent of our lenders, to increase the facility by another 
$70 million to a total of $400 million, the pending maturity of the facility 
will likely limit our potential to exercise that option. We have used the credit 
facility in the past, and we may do so again in the future, to fund investments 
in new and existing Affiliates, and we also may use the credit facility for 
working capital purposes or to refinance other indebtedness. 
 
    Our credit facility matures in December 2002. While we intend to obtain new 
credit financing prior to that time, we may not be able to obtain this financing 
on terms comparable to our current credit facility. Our failure to do so could 
increase our interest expense, decrease our net income and adversely affect our 
ability to fund new investments and otherwise use our credit facility as 
described above. 
 
    We may borrow under our credit facility only if we continue to meet certain 
financial tests, including interest and leverage ratios. In addition, our credit 
facility contains provisions for the benefit of our lenders that restrict the 
manner in which we can conduct our business, that may adversely affect our 
ability to make investments in new and existing Affiliates and that may have an 
adverse impact on the interests of our stockholders. 
 
    Because indebtedness under our credit facility bears interest at variable 
rates, increases in interest rates may increase our interest expense, which 
could adversely affect our cash flow, our ability to meet our debt service 



obligations and our ability to fund future investments. Although we currently 
are party to interest rate hedging contracts designed to offset a portion of our 
exposure to interest rate fluctuations, we cannot be certain that this strategy 
will be effective. 
 
    REPURCHASE OBLIGATIONS UNDER ZERO COUPON CONVERTIBLE SENIOR NOTES.  In 
May 2001, we issued $251 million of zero coupon convertible senior notes due 
2021. On May 7 of 2002, 2004, 2006, 2011 and 2016, holders may require us to 
purchase all or a portion of these notes at their accreted value. While we 
cannot predict whether or when holders will choose to exercise their repurchase 
rights, we believe that they would become more likely to do so in the event of a 
decline in the price or volatility of our Common Stock, or an increase in 
interest rates, or both. We may choose to pay the purchase price in cash or 
(subject to certain conditions) in shares of our Common Stock, or in a 
combination of both. We may wish to avoid paying the purchase price in Common 
Stock if we believe that doing so would be unfavorable to existing shareholders. 
We currently intend to repurchase the securities with cash. Therefore, if a 
substantial portion of the notes were to be submitted for repurchase on one of 
the 
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repurchase dates, we might need to use a substantial amount of our available 
sources of liquidity for this purpose. This could have the effect of restricting 
our ability to fund new acquisitions or to meet other future working capital 
needs, as well as increasing our costs of borrowing. We may seek other means of 
refinancing or restructuring our obligations under the notes, but this may 
result in terms less favorable than those under the existing notes. 
 
    OBLIGATIONS TO PURCHASE ADDITIONAL EQUITY IN OUR AFFILIATES.  Under our 
agreements with our Affiliates, we typically are obligated to purchase 
additional ownership interests in our Affiliates from their managers in certain 
circumstances. The price for these purchases may, in certain cases, be 
substantial and may result in us having more interest expense and less net 
income. These purchases will also result in our ownership of larger portions of 
our Affiliates, which may have an adverse effect on our cash flow and liquidity. 
In addition, in connection with these purchases, we may face the financing risks 
described above. 
 
   OUR GROWTH STRATEGY DEPENDS UPON CONTINUED GROWTH FROM OUR EXISTING 
   AFFILIATES AND UPON OUR MAKING NEW INVESTMENTS IN MID-SIZED INVESTMENT 
   MANAGEMENT FIRMS. 
 
    While historically our growth has come largely from making new investments, 
in recent periods the performance of our existing Affiliates has become 
increasingly important to our growth. There can be no assurance that our 
Affiliates will maintain their respective levels of performance or that our 
Affiliates will continue to contribute to our growth at their historical levels. 
Also, our Affiliates may be unable to carry out their management succession 
plans, which may adversely affect their operations and revenue streams. 
 
    In addition, our growth strategy depends upon our ability to make new 
investments in mid-sized investment management firms on acceptable terms. The 
success of our investment program, however, will depend upon our ability to find 
suitable firms in which to invest and our ability to negotiate agreements with 
such firms on acceptable terms. We cannot be certain that we will be successful 
in finding or investing in such firms or that they will have favorable operating 
results following our investment, which could have an adverse effect on our 
business, financial condition and results of operations. 
 
   THE FAILURE TO RECEIVE REGULAR DISTRIBUTIONS FROM OUR AFFILIATES WOULD 
   ADVERSELY AFFECT US, AND OUR HOLDING COMPANY STRUCTURE RESULTS IN SUBSTANTIAL 
   STRUCTURAL SUBORDINATION AND MAY AFFECT OUR ABILITY TO MAKE PAYMENTS ON OUR 
   OBLIGATIONS. 
 
    Because we are a holding company, we receive substantially all of our cash 
from distributions made to us by our Affiliates. Our Affiliates have generally 
entered into agreements with us under which they have agreed to pay us a 
specified percentage of their gross revenue. An Affiliate's payment of 
distributions to us may be subject to claims by the Affiliate's creditors and to 
limitations applicable to the Affiliate under federal and state laws, including 
securities and bankruptcy laws. Additionally, we may defer the receipt of our 
share of an Affiliate's revenue to permit the Affiliate to fund its operating 
expenses, and an Affiliate may default on some or all of the distributions that 
are payable to us. As a result, we cannot guarantee that we will always receive 
these distributions from our Affiliates. 
 
    Our right to receive any assets of our Affiliates or subsidiaries upon their 
liquidation or reorganization, and thus the right of the holders of securities 
issued by us to participate in those assets, typically would be subordinated to 
the claims of that entity's creditors. In addition, even if we were a creditor 



of any of our Affiliates or subsidiaries, our rights as a creditor would be 
subordinate to any security interest and indebtedness that is senior to us. 
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    WE AND OUR AFFILIATES RELY ON CERTAIN KEY PERSONNEL AND CANNOT GUARANTEE 
     THEIR CONTINUED SERVICE. 
 
    We depend on the efforts of our executive officers and our other officers 
and employees. Our executive officers, in particular, play an important role in 
the growth of our existing Affiliates and in identifying potential investment 
opportunities for us. Our officers do not have employment agreements with us, 
although each of them has a significant equity interest in us, including stock 
options subject to vesting provisions. 
 
    In addition, our Affiliates depend heavily on the services of key 
principals, who in many cases have managed their firms for many years prior to 
our investment. These principals often are primarily responsible for their 
firm's investment decisions. Although we use a combination of economic 
incentives, vesting provisions and, in some instances, non-solicitation 
agreements and employment agreements in an effort to retain key management 
personnel, there is no guarantee that these principals will remain with their 
firms. Moreover, since certain Affiliates contribute significantly to our 
revenue, the loss of key management personnel at these Affiliates could have a 
disproportionate impact on our business. 
 
    The loss of key management personnel or an inability to attract, retain and 
motivate sufficient numbers of qualified management personnel may adversely 
affect our business and our Affiliates' businesses. The market for investment 
managers is extremely competitive and is increasingly characterized by the 
frequent movement of investment managers among different firms. In addition, 
since individual investment managers at our Affiliates often maintain a strong, 
personal relationship with their clients that is based on their clients' trust 
in the manager, the departure of a manager could cause the Affiliate to lose 
client accounts, which could have a material adverse effect on the results of 
operations and financial condition of both the Affiliate and us. 
 
   WE HAVE SUBSTANTIAL INTANGIBLES ON OUR BALANCE SHEET, AND ANY RE-VALUATION OF 
   OUR INTANGIBLES COULD ADVERSELY AFFECT OUR RESULTS OF OPERATIONS AND 
   FINANCIAL POSITION. 
 
    At December 31, 2001, our total assets were $1.2 billion, of which 
$975.0 million (or 81%) were intangible assets consisting of acquired client 
relationships and goodwill. We cannot be certain that we will ever realize the 
value of such intangible assets. We are amortizing, or writing off, acquired 
client relationships on a straight-line basis over periods ranging from 7 to 
28 years. Historically, we have also amortized goodwill on this basis over 
periods ranging from 15 to 35 years, but have ceased to do so as a result of 
recent accounting rule changes. 
 
    In July 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued Financial 
Accounting Standard No. 142 ("FAS 142"), "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." 
FAS 142 (which generally became effective January 1, 2002) requires that 
goodwill and other intangible assets that have indefinite lives no longer be 
amortized but instead be tested for impairment using a new fair value impairment 
test. Since the fair value test is more rigorous than the undiscounted cash flow 
methodology that many companies previously used, companies that have intangible 
assets (including us) are now more likely to incur impairment charges. 
 
    CHANGING CONDITIONS IN THE FINANCIAL AND SECURITIES MARKETS DIRECTLY AFFECT 
     OUR PERFORMANCE. 
 
    Our Affiliates' investment management contracts typically provide for 
payment based on the market value of assets under management, and payments are 
therefore inherently dependent on the conditions in the financial and securities 
markets. In addition, certain of our Affiliates' investment management contracts 
include fees based on investment performance, which are directly dependent upon 
investment results and thus often vary substantially from year to year. 
Unfavorable market performance, fluctuations in the prices of specific 
securities, asset withdrawals or other changes in the investment patterns of our 
Affiliates' clients may reduce our Affiliates' assets under management, which 
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in turn may adversely affect the fees payable to our Affiliates and, ultimately, 
our consolidated results of operations and financial condition. 
 
    OUR AFFILIATES' INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS ARE SUBJECT TO TERMINATION 
     ON SHORT NOTICE. 
 
    Our Affiliates derive almost all of their revenue from their clients based 



upon their investment management contracts with those clients. These contracts 
are typically terminable by the client without penalty upon relatively short 
notice (typically not longer than 60 days). We cannot be certain that our 
Affiliates will be able to retain their existing clients or to attract new 
clients. If our Affiliates' clients withdraw a substantial amount of funds, it 
is likely to harm our results. 
 
   OUR AFFILIATES' AUTONOMY LIMITS OUR ABILITY TO ALTER THEIR MANAGEMENT 
   PRACTICES AND POLICIES, AND WE MAY BE HELD RESPONSIBLE FOR LIABILITIES 
   INCURRED BY THEM. 
 
    Although our agreements with our Affiliates typically give us the authority 
to control and/or vote with respect to certain of their business activities, our 
Affiliates manage their own day-to-day operations, including investment 
management policies and fee levels, product development, client relationships, 
compensation programs and compliance activities. As a result, we may not become 
aware, for example, of an Affiliate's loss of a significant client or an 
Affiliate's non-compliance with a regulatory requirement as quickly as if we 
were involved in the day-to-day business of the Affiliate, and we may not become 
aware of such event at all. As a consequence, our financial condition and 
results of operations may be adversely affected by problems stemming from the 
day-to-day operations of our Affiliates. 
 
    Some of our Affiliates are partnerships of which we are, or an entity 
controlled by us is, the general partner. Consequently, to the extent that any 
of these Affiliates incurs liabilities or expenses that exceed its ability to 
pay for them, we may be directly or indirectly liable for their payment. In 
addition, with respect to each of our Affiliates, we may be held liable in some 
circumstances as a control person for the acts of the Affiliate or its 
employees. While we and our Affiliates maintain errors and omissions and general 
liability insurance in amounts believed to be adequate to cover certain 
potential liabilities, we cannot be certain that we will not have claims that 
exceed the limits of our available insurance coverage, that our insurers will 
remain solvent and will meet their obligations to provide coverage or that 
insurance coverage will continue to be available to us with sufficient limits 
and at a reasonable cost. A judgment against any of our Affiliates or us in 
excess of available insurance coverage could have a material adverse effect on 
the Affiliate and us. 
 
    OUR INDUSTRY AND OUR AFFILIATES' INDUSTRIES ARE HIGHLY COMPETITIVE. 
 
    The market for acquisitions of interests in investment management firms is 
highly competitive. Many other public and private financial services companies, 
including commercial and investment banks, insurance companies and investment 
management firms, have significantly greater resources than us, and invest in or 
buy investment management firms. We cannot guarantee that we will be able to 
compete effectively with such competitors, that new competitors will not enter 
the market or that such competition will not make it more difficult or 
impracticable for us to make new investments in investment management firms. 
 
    Our Affiliates compete with a broad range of investment managers, including 
public and private investment advisers, firms associated with securities 
broker-dealers, banks, insurance companies and other entities that serve our 
three principal distribution channels. From time to time, our Affiliates may 
also compete with each other for clients. Many of our Affiliates' competitors 
have greater resources than our Affiliates and us. This competition may reduce 
the fees that our Affiliates can obtain for their services. We believe that our 
Affiliates' ability to compete effectively with other firms in our three 
distribution channels depends upon our Affiliates' products, investment 
performance and client- 
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servicing capabilities, and the marketing and distribution of their investment 
products. There can be no assurance that our Affiliates will compare favorably 
with their competitors in any or all of these categories. 
 
    OUR AFFILIATES' BUSINESSES ARE HIGHLY REGULATED. 
 
    Many aspects of our Affiliates' businesses are subject to extensive 
regulation by various U.S. federal regulatory authorities, certain state 
regulatory authorities and non-U.S. regulatory authorities. We cannot ensure 
that our Affiliates will fulfill all applicable regulatory requirements. The 
failure of any Affiliate to satisfy regulatory requirements could subject that 
Affiliate to sanctions that might materially impact the Affiliate's business and 
our business. 
 
   OUR AFFILIATED INVESTMENT MANAGEMENT FIRMS' INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS ARE 
   SUBJECT TO FOREIGN RISKS, INCLUDING POLITICAL, REGULATORY, ECONOMIC AND 
   CURRENCY RISKS. 
 



    Some of our affiliated investment management firms operate or advise clients 
outside of the United States, and one affiliated investment management firm, 
Dublin Fund Distributors, is based outside the United States. Accordingly, we 
and our affiliated investment management firms that have foreign operations are 
subject to risks inherent in doing business internationally, which risks may 
include changes in applicable laws and regulatory requirements, difficulties in 
staffing and managing foreign operations, longer payment cycles, difficulties in 
collecting investment advisory fees receivable, less stringent legal, regulatory 
and accounting regimes, political instability, fluctuations in currency exchange 
rates, expatriation controls, expropriation risks and potential adverse tax 
consequences. These or other foreign risks may have an adverse effect both on 
our affiliated investment management firms and on our consolidated business, 
financial condition and results of operations. 
 
   THE PRICE OF OUR COMMON STOCK HISTORICALLY HAS BEEN VOLATILE, AND THE SALE OF 
   SUBSTANTIAL AMOUNTS OF OUR COMMON STOCK COULD ADVERSELY IMPACT THE PRICE OF 
   OUR COMMON STOCK. 
 
    The market price of our Common Stock historically has experienced and may 
continue to experience high volatility, and the broader stock market has 
experienced significant price and volume fluctuations in recent years. This 
volatility has affected the market prices of securities issued by many companies 
for reasons unrelated to their operating performance and may adversely affect 
the price of our Common Stock. In addition, our announcements of our quarterly 
operating results, changes in general conditions in the economy or the financial 
markets and other developments affecting us, our Affiliates or our competitors 
could cause the market price of our Common Stock to fluctuate substantially. 
 
    In addition, the sale of substantial amounts of our Common Stock could 
adversely impact its price. We may issue additional shares of our Common Stock 
in connection with our financing activities, as described previously. 
Furthermore, we have registered for resale the 3,250,000 shares of our Common 
Stock reserved for issuance under our stock option plan and intend to register 
additional shares under the plan in the near future. As of December 31, 2001, 
options to purchase 3,411,408 shares of our Common Stock were outstanding (of 
which 1,475,870 were exercisable) and, upon exercise of these options, the 
underlying shares will be eligible for sale in the public market. In the event 
that a large number of shares of our Common Stock are sold in the public market, 
the price of our Common Stock may fall. 
 
    OUR CHARTER AND BY-LAWS AND DELAWARE LAW MAY IMPEDE TRANSACTIONS FAVORABLE 
     TO OUR STOCKHOLDERS. 
 
    Several provisions of our amended and restated certificate of incorporation, 
our amended and restated by-laws and Delaware law may, together or separately, 
prevent a transaction that is beneficial to our stockholders from occurring. 
These provisions may discourage potential purchasers from 
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presenting acquisition proposals, delay or prevent potential purchasers from 
acquiring a controlling interest in us, block the removal of incumbent 
directors, limit the price that potential purchasers might be willing to pay for 
shares of our Common Stock and prohibit us from engaging in certain business 
combinations with interested stockholders. 
 
ITEM 2. PROPERTIES 
 
    Our executive offices are located at 600 Hale Street, Prides Crossing, 
Massachusetts 01965. We have entered into an operating lease for these offices 
that expires in December 2006. The lease includes renewal options that can be 
exercised at the end of the lease term, and purchase options that can be 
exercised prior to the expiration of the lease term. We believe that the 
property is suitable for our use for the foreseeable future. 
 
    Each of our Affiliates leases office space in the city or cities in which it 
conducts business. 
 
ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS 
 
    From time to time, we and our Affiliates may be parties to various claims, 
suits and complaints. Currently, there are no such claims, suits or complaints 
that, in our opinion, would have a material adverse effect on our financial 
position, liquidity or results of operations. 
 
ITEM 4. SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS 
 
    No matters were submitted to a vote of stockholders during the fourth 
quarter of the year covered by this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 
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                                    PART II 
 
ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY AND RELATED STOCKHOLDER MATTERS 
 
    Our Common Stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange (symbol: AMG). The 
following table sets forth the high and low closing prices as reported on the 
New York Stock Exchange composite tape since January 1, 2000. 
 

HIGH LOW -------- -------- 2000 First
Quarter.............................................

$50.00 $33.00 Second
Quarter............................................

45.50 31.38 Third
Quarter.............................................

64.25 42.50 Fourth
Quarter............................................

63.63 44.19 2001 First
Quarter.............................................

$62.00 $44.00 Second
Quarter............................................

63.90 43.60 Third
Quarter.............................................

71.90 55.01 Fourth
Quarter............................................

73.34 56.79 2002 First
Quarter.............................................

$73.64 $65.55
 
 
    The closing price for a share of our Common Stock on the New York Stock 
Exchange on March 22, 2002 was $72.39. 
 
    As of December 31, 2001, there were 54 stockholders of record. As of 
March 22, 2002, there were 46 stockholders of record. 
 
    We have not declared a dividend with respect to the periods presented. Since 
we intend to retain earnings to finance investments in new Affiliates, repay 
indebtedness, pay interest and income taxes, repurchase our Common Stock when 
appropriate and develop our existing business, we do not anticipate paying cash 
dividends on our Common Stock in the foreseeable future. Our credit facility 
also prohibits us from making dividend payments to our stockholders. 
 
                                       17 
 
ITEM 6. SELECTED HISTORICAL FINANCIAL DATA 
 
    Set forth below are selected financial data for the last five years. This 
data should be read in conjunction with, and is qualified in its entirety by 
reference to, the financial statements and accompanying notes included elsewhere 
in this Form 10-K. 
 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, ------
---------------------------------------
---------- 1997 1998 1999 2000 2001 ---
------ -------- -------- -------- -----

----- (IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT AS
INDICATED AND PER SHARE DATA) STATEMENT

OF OPERATIONS DATA
Revenue.................................
$ 95,287 $238,494 $518,726 $458,708 $

408,210 Net income
(loss)....................... (8,368)
25,551 72,188 56,656 49,989 Earnings

(loss) per share--diluted...... (1.02)
1.33 3.18 2.49 2.20 Average shares

outstanding--diluted(1)...............
8,236 19,223 22,693 22,749 22,732 OTHER
FINANCIAL DATA Assets under management

(at period end, in
millions).......................... $
45,673 $ 57,731 $ 82,041 $ 77,523 $

81,006
EBITDA(2)...............................
20,044 76,312 166,801 142,378 132,143
Cash Flow from (used in): Operating

activities.................. $ 16,205 $
45,424 $ 89,119 $153,711 $ 96,174

Investing activities..................
(327,275) (72,665) (112,939) (111,730)

(343,674) Financing



activities.................. 327,112
28,163 54,035 (63,961) 289,267 Cash Net
Income(3)...................... 10,201

45,675 98,318 87,676 84,090 Cash
earnings per share--diluted(4).....

1.24 2.38 4.33 3.85 3.70 BALANCE SHEET
DATA Intangible

assets(5).................... $ 392,573
$490,949 $571,881 $643,470 $ 974,956

Total
assets............................
456,990 605,334 909,073 793,730

1,160,321 Long-term
obligations................... 161,956

192,504 176,646 154,436 223,795
Stockholders'

equity(1)................. 259,740
313,655 477,986 493,910 543,340

 
 
- ------------------------ 
 
(1)  In connection with our initial public offering in November 1997, we raised 
     $189 million from the sale of 8.7 million shares of Common Stock and 
     8.0 million shares of preferred stock converted to shares of Common Stock. 
     In March 1999, we raised $102.3 million from our sale of an additional 
     4.0 million shares of Common Stock. 
 
(2)  As described in greater detail in Note (3) on page 2, EBITDA generally 
     represents earnings before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and 
     amortization. EBITDA data for 1997 also excludes an extraordinary item 
     related to the replacement of our previous credit facilities with new 
     facilities. 
 
(3)  In this report, Cash Net Income generally represents net income plus 
     depreciation and amortization. Cash Net Income data for 1997 also includes 
     the extraordinary item described above in Note (2). We believe that Cash 
     Net Income is a measure that may be useful to investors as an indicator of 
     funds available to the Company, which may be used to make new investments, 
     repay debt obligations, repurchase shares of Common Stock or pay dividends 
     on Common Stock. Cash Net Income is not a measure of financial performance 
     under generally accepted accounting principles and should not be considered 
     an alternative to net income as a measure of operating performance or to 
     cash flows from operating activities as a measure of liquidity. Cash Net 
     Income, as calculated by us, may not be consistent with computations of 
     Cash Net Income by other companies. As discussed on page 21, beginning in 
     2002 our definition of Cash Net Income will be modified to "net income plus 
     depreciation, amortization and deferred taxes." 
 
(4)  Cash earnings per share represents Cash Net Income divided by average 
     shares outstanding. 
 
(5)  Intangible assets have increased with each new investment in an Affiliate 
     or in an affiliated investment management firm. 
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS 
  OF OPERATIONS 
 
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS 
 
    WHEN USED IN THIS FORM 10-K AND IN OUR FUTURE FILINGS WITH THE SECURITIES 
AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION, IN OUR PRESS RELEASES AND IN ORAL STATEMENTS MADE WITH 
THE APPROVAL OF AN AUTHORIZED OFFICER, THE WORDS OR PHRASES "WILL LIKELY 
RESULT," "ARE EXPECTED TO," "WILL CONTINUE," "IS ANTICIPATED," "BELIEVES," 
"ESTIMATE," "PROJECT" OR SIMILAR EXPRESSIONS ARE INTENDED TO IDENTIFY 
"FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS" WITHIN THE MEANING OF THE PRIVATE SECURITIES 
LITIGATION REFORM ACT OF 1995. SUCH STATEMENTS ARE SUBJECT TO CERTAIN RISKS AND 
UNCERTAINTIES, INCLUDING THOSE DISCUSSED UNDER THE CAPTION "BUSINESS--CAUTIONARY 
STATEMENTS" THAT COULD CAUSE ACTUAL RESULTS TO DIFFER MATERIALLY FROM HISTORICAL 
EARNINGS AND THOSE PRESENTLY ANTICIPATED OR PROJECTED. WE WISH TO CAUTION 
READERS NOT TO PLACE UNDUE RELIANCE ON ANY SUCH FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS, 
WHICH SPEAK ONLY AS OF THE DATE MADE. WE WISH TO ADVISE READERS THAT THE FACTORS 
UNDER THE CAPTION "BUSINESS--CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS" COULD AFFECT OUR FINANCIAL 
PERFORMANCE AND COULD CAUSE OUR ACTUAL RESULTS FOR FUTURE PERIODS TO DIFFER 
MATERIALLY FROM ANY OPINIONS OR STATEMENTS EXPRESSED WITH RESPECT TO FUTURE 
PERIODS IN ANY CURRENT STATEMENTS. 
 
OVERVIEW 
 



    We are an asset management company with equity investments in a diverse 
group of mid-sized investment management firms (our "Affiliates"). As of 
December 31, 2001, our affiliated investment management firms managed 
approximately $81.0 billion in assets across a broad range of investment styles 
and in three principal distribution channels (High Net Worth, Mutual Fund and 
Institutional). We pursue a growth strategy designed to generate shareholder 
value through the internal growth of existing Affiliates, investments in 
additional, mid-sized investment management firms, and strategic transactions 
and relationships designed to enhance our Affiliates' businesses and growth 
prospects. 
 
    In our investments in Affiliates, we typically hold a majority equity 
interest in each firm, with the remaining equity interests retained by the 
management of the Affiliate. Each Affiliate is organized as a separate and 
largely autonomous limited liability company or limited partnership. Each 
Affiliate operating agreement is tailored to meet the particular characteristics 
of the Affiliate. Many of our Affiliates' organizational documents include 
revenue sharing arrangements. Each such revenue sharing arrangement allocates a 
percentage of revenue (typically 50-70%) for use by management of that Affiliate 
in paying operating expenses of the Affiliate, including salaries and bonuses. 
We call this the "Operating Allocation." We determine the percentage of revenue 
designated as Operating Allocation for each Affiliate in consultation with 
senior management of the Affiliate at the time of our investment based on the 
Affiliate's historical and projected operating margins. The organizational 
document of each such Affiliate allocates the remaining portion of the 
Affiliate's revenue (typically 30-50%) to the owners of that Affiliate 
(including us). We call this the "Owners' Allocation." Each Affiliate 
distributes its Owners' Allocation to its managers and to us generally in 
proportion to their and our respective ownership interests in that Affiliate. 
 
    One of the purposes of our revenue sharing arrangements is to provide 
ongoing incentives for Affiliate managers by allowing them: 
 
    - to participate in the growth of their firm's revenue, which may increase 
      their compensation from the Operating Allocation, and their distributions 
      from the Owners' Allocation; and 
 
    - to control operating expenses, thereby increasing the portion of the 
      Operating Allocation which is available for growth initiatives and 
      compensation. 
 
    An Affiliate's managers therefore have incentives to increase revenue 
(thereby increasing the Operating Allocation and their share of the Owners' 
Allocation) and to control expenses (thereby increasing the amount of Operating 
Allocation available for their compensation). 
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    The revenue sharing arrangements allow us to participate in the revenue 
growth of each Affiliate because we receive a portion of the additional revenue 
as our share of the Owners' Allocation. We participate in that growth to a 
lesser extent than the Affiliate's managers, however, because we do not share in 
the growth of the Operating Allocation or in any increases in profit margin. 
 
    In certain other cases (such as, for example, The Managers Funds LLC 
("Managers")), the Affiliate is not subject to a revenue sharing arrangement, 
but instead operates on a profit-based model. As a result, we participate fully 
in any increase or decrease in the revenue or expenses of such firms. 
 
    Net income on our income statement reflects the consolidation of 
substantially all of the revenue of our Affiliates, reduced by: 
 
    - the operating expenses of our Affiliates (which generally are limited to 
      their Operating Allocations); 
 
    - our operating expenses (i.e., our holding company expenses, including 
      interest, amortization and income taxes); and 
 
    - the profits owned by our Affiliates' managers (representing their share of 
      the Owners' Allocation and referred to on our income statement as 
      "minority interest"). 
 
    As discussed above, the operating expenses of an Affiliate as well as its 
managers' minority interest generally increase (or decrease) as the Affiliate's 
revenue increases (or decreases) because of the direct relationship established 
in many of our agreements between the Affiliate's revenue and its Operating 
Allocation and Owners' Allocation. 
 
    Our level of profitability will depend on a variety of factors, including: 
 
    - the level of Affiliate revenue, which is dependent on the ability of our 



      existing and future Affiliates to maintain or increase assets under 
      management by maintaining their existing investment advisory relationships 
      and fee structures, marketing their services successfully to new clients 
      and obtaining favorable investment results; 
 
    - a variety of factors affecting the securities markets generally, which 
      could potentially result in considerable increases or decreases in the 
      assets under management at our Affiliates; 
 
    - the receipt of Owners' Allocation, which depends on the ability of our 
      existing and future Affiliates to maintain certain levels of operating 
      profit margins; 
 
    - the availability and cost of the capital with which we finance our 
      existing and new investments; 
 
    - our success in making new investments and the terms upon which such 
      transactions are completed; 
 
    - the level of intangible assets and the associated amortization expense 
      resulting from our investments; 
 
    - the level of expenses incurred for holding company operations, including 
      compensation for our employees; and 
 
    - the level of taxation to which we are subject. 
 
    We generally derive our revenue from the provision of investment management 
services for fees by our Affiliates. Investment management fees ("asset-based 
fees") are usually determined as a percentage fee charged on periodic values of 
a client's assets under management. Certain of the Affiliates bill advisory fees 
for all or a portion of their clients based upon assets under management valued 
at the beginning of a billing period ("in advance"). Other Affiliates bill 
advisory fees for all or a portion of their clients based upon assets under 
management valued at the end of the billing period ("in arrears"), while mutual 
fund clients are billed based upon daily assets. Advisory fees billed in advance 
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will not reflect subsequent changes in the market value of assets under 
management for that period. Conversely, advisory fees billed in arrears will 
reflect changes in the market value of assets under management for that period. 
In addition, fees paid on the basis of investment performance ("performance 
fees") at certain Affiliates may affect the profitability of those Affiliates 
and us. Performance fees are inherently dependent on investment results, and 
therefore may vary substantially from year to year. For example, performance 
fees were of an unusual magnitude in 1999, but were not as significant in 2000 
or 2001, and may not recur even to the same magnitude as in 2000 or 2001 in 
future years, if at all. 
 
    Our profit distributions generally take priority over the distributions to 
other owners. If there are any expenses in excess of the Operating Allocation of 
an Affiliate, the excess expenses first reduce the portion of the Owners' 
Allocation allocated to the Affiliate's managers, until that portion is 
eliminated, and then reduce the portion allocated to us. Any such reduction in 
our portion of the Owners' Allocation is required to be paid back to us out of 
future Owners' Allocation. 
 
    We believe it is significant to distinguish certain amortization and other 
non-cash expenses from other operating expenses since these expenses do not 
require the use of cash. We have provided additional supplemental information in 
this report for "cash" related earnings as an addition to, but not as a 
substitute for, measures of financial performance under generally accepted 
accounting principles, and our calculations may not be consistent with those of 
other companies. In this report, our additional measures of "cash" related 
earnings are: 
 
    - Cash Net Income (net income plus depreciation and amortization), which we 
      believe is useful to investors as an indicator of funds available to us 
      which may be used to make new investments, repay debt obligations, 
      repurchase shares of our Common Stock or pay dividends on our Common Stock 
      (although we have no current plans to pay dividends); 
 
    - EBITDA (earnings before interest expense, income taxes, depreciation and 
      amortization), which we believe is useful to investors as an indicator of 
      our ability to service debt, make new investments and meet working capital 
      requirements; and 
 
    - EBITDA Contribution (EBITDA plus our holding company operating expenses), 
      which we believe is useful to investors as an indicator of funds available 
      from our Affiliates' operations to pay holding company operating expenses, 



      service debt, make new investments and meet working capital requirements. 
 
    Beginning in 2002, our measure of Cash Net Income will be modified in 
response to the implementation of Financial Accounting Standard No. 142 
("FAS 142"), "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." Prior to this change, 
deferred tax expenses were accrued because intangible assets were amortized over 
different periods for financial reporting and income tax purposes (since we 
structure our investments as taxable transactions, and since our cash taxes are 
reduced by amortization deductions over the periods prescribed by tax laws). 
While FAS 142 eliminated the amortization of goodwill and certain other 
intangible assets, it continues to require the accrual of deferred tax expenses 
for these assets. Nevertheless, because under FAS 142 this deferred tax accrual 
would reverse only in the event of a future sale or impairment of an Affiliate, 
we believe deferred tax accruals should be added back in calculating Cash Net 
Income to best approximate the actual funds available to us to make new 
investments, repay debt obligations or repurchase shares of Common Stock. 
Accordingly, in providing future supplemental information, we will define Cash 
Net Income as "net income plus depreciation, amortization and deferred taxes." 
 
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
    We conduct our business in three operating segments corresponding with the 
three principal distribution channels in which our Affiliates provide investment 
management services: High Net Worth, 
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Mutual Fund and Institutional. Clients in the High Net Worth distribution 
channel include wealthy individuals and family trusts, with whom our Affiliates 
have direct relationships or indirect relationships through managed account 
("wrap") programs. In the Mutual Fund distribution channel, our Affiliates 
provide advisory or sub-advisory services to mutual funds that are distributed 
to retail and institutional clients directly and through intermediaries, 
including independent investment advisers, retirement plan sponsors, 
broker-dealers, major fund marketplaces and bank trust departments. In the 
Institutional distribution channel, our Affiliates manage assets for foundations 
and endowments, defined benefit and defined contribution plans for corporations 
and municipalities and Taft-Hartley plans. 
 
    Our assets under management include assets which are directly managed and 
those that underlie overlay strategies. Overlay assets (assets managed subject 
to strategies which employ futures, options or other derivative securities) 
generate fees which typically are substantially lower than the fees generated by 
our Affiliates' other investment strategies. Therefore, changes in directly 
managed assets have a greater impact on our revenue than changes in total assets 
under management (a figure which includes overlay assets). 
 
    The following tables present a summary of our reported assets under 
management by distribution channel and activity. 
 
                ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT--BY DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL 
 

AT DECEMBER 31, ------------------------------
(DOLLARS IN BILLIONS) 1999 2000 2001 - -----------

---------- -------- -------- -------- High Net
Worth..................................... $16.1

$22.2 $24.6 Mutual
Fund........................................ 7.4

9.3 14.4
Institutional......................................
58.5 46.0 42.0 ----- ----- ----- $82.0 $77.5 $81.0
===== ===== ===== Directly managed assets--Percent
of total...... 75% 85% 88% Overlay assets--Percent
of total............... 25% 15% 12% ----- ----- --

--- 100% 100% 100% ===== ===== =====
 
 
                 ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT--STATEMENT OF CHANGES 
 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, -----------------------
------- (DOLLARS IN BILLIONS) 1999 2000 2001 -
--------------------- -------- -------- -------

- Beginning of
period....................................

$57.7 $82.0 $77.5 New
investments....................................
7.5 5.2 10.9 Net client cash flows--directly

managed assets..... 0.5 0.2 2.8 Net client cash
flows--overlay assets.............. (1.1) (7.4)

(1.3) Investment
performance............................. 17.4



(2.5) (8.9) ----- ----- ----- End of
period..........................................

$82.0 $77.5 $81.0 ===== ===== =====
 
 
    Our assets under management at the end of 2001 were $81.0 billion, 4.5% 
higher than at the end of 2000. Excluding new investments (the most significant 
of which in terms of impact on assets under management were closed in the final 
months of 2001), assets directly managed by our Affiliates declined 10% in 2001, 
a decline which was primarily attributable to declines in the value of assets 
under management, which resulted principally from a broad decline in the equity 
markets. 
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    The following table presents selected financial data for each of our 
operating segments. 
 

(IN MILLIONS, EXCEPT AS NOTED) 1999 2000 %
CHANGE 2001 % CHANGE - -------------------------
----- -------- -------- -------- -------- ------
-- AVERAGE ASSETS UNDER MANAGEMENT (IN BILLIONS)

(1) High Net
Worth................................... $ 13.5

$ 20.0 48% $ 23.1 16% Mutual
Fund...................................... 6.5

8.6 32% 10.1 17%
Institutional....................................
50.4 57.4 14% 39.7 (31%) ------ ------ ------

Total..........................................
$ 70.4 $ 86.0 22% $ 72.9 (15%) ====== ======

====== REVENUE High Net
Worth................................... $177.9

$138.9 (22%) $133.8 (4%) Mutual
Fund...................................... 76.4

97.4 27% 113.6 17%
Institutional....................................
264.4 222.4 (16%) 160.8 (28%) ------ ------ ----

--
Total..........................................
$518.7 $458.7 (12%) $408.2 (11%) ====== ======

====== NET INCOME(2) High Net
Worth................................... $ 28.8

$ 19.4 (33%) $ 18.6 (4%) Mutual
Fund...................................... 11.5

12.7 10% 15.6 23%
Institutional....................................
31.9 24.6 (23%) 15.8 (36%) ------ ------ ------
Total..........................................
$ 72.2 $ 56.7 (21%) $ 50.0 (12%) ====== ======

====== EBITDA High Net
Worth................................... $ 63.3

$ 46.5 (27%) $ 45.1 (3%) Mutual
Fund...................................... 29.0

32.4 12% 38.8 20%
Institutional....................................
74.5 63.5 (15%) 48.2 (24%) ------ ------ ------
Total..........................................
$166.8 $142.4 (15%) $132.1 (7%) ====== ======

======
 
 
    REVENUE 
 
    Our revenue is generally determined by the following factors: 
 
    - the increase or decrease in assets under management (from new investments, 
      net client cash flows or changes in the value of assets that are 
      attributable to fluctuations in the equity markets); 
 
    - the portion of our directly managed and overlay assets, which realize 
      different fee rates; 
 
    - the portion of our assets across the three principal distribution channels 
      and our Affiliates, which realize different fee rates; and 
 
    - the recognition of any performance fees charged by certain Affiliates. 
 
    In addition, the billing patterns of our Affiliates will have an impact on 
revenue in cases of rising or falling markets. As described previously, advisory 
fees billed in advance will not reflect subsequent changes in the market value 



of assets under management for that period, while advisory fees billed in 
arrears will reflect changes in the market value of assets under management for 
that period. 
 
- ------------------------ 
 
(1)  Average assets under management for the High Net Worth and Institutional 
     distribution channels represents an average of the assets under management 
     at the end of each calendar quarter. Average assets under management for 
     the Mutual Fund distribution channel represents an average of daily net 
     assets for the year. 
 
(2)  Net income by distribution channel reflects revenue for assets managed in 
     each distribution channel after our allocation of consolidated operating 
     expenses, including the growth in profit margins beyond our contractual 
     Owners' Allocation paid to Affiliate management partners as compensation 
     from the Operating Allocation. Note 18 to our Consolidated Financial 
     Statements describes the basis of presentation of our distribution channel 
     operating results. 
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    Total revenue decreased 11% in 2001 from 2000, following a 12% decrease in 
2000 from 1999. The decrease in revenue in 2001 resulted primarily from declines 
in directly managed assets attributable to declines in the value of assets under 
management, which resulted principally from a broad decline in the equity 
markets. These declines were partially offset by revenue generated by positive 
net client cash flows from directly managed assets and from investments in new 
Affiliates. The decrease in revenue in 2000 was principally the result of an 
unusual magnitude of performance fees realized in 1999, which accounted for 39% 
of revenue in 1999 and which did not recur at this level in 2000. The decrease 
in revenue in 2000 was partially offset by the growth in asset-based fees at our 
existing Affiliates and from our investment in Frontier Capital Management 
Company, LLC ("Frontier"), which closed in January 2000. 
 
    A discussion of the changes in our revenue by operating segments follows: 
 
    HIGH NET WORTH DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL 
 
    The decrease in revenue in 2001 from 2000 resulted from a decline in 
performance fees and a shift in assets under management within this distribution 
channel to client relationships that realize lower fee rates, and was partially 
offset by the increase in average assets under management. The increase in 
average assets under management of 16% from 2000 to 2001 was primarily 
attributable to positive net client cash flows from directly managed assets and 
our investment in Welch & Forbes LLC ("Welch & Forbes") in November 2001, and 
was partially offset by a decline in the value of assets under management 
attributable to equity market performance. The decrease in revenue in 2000 
resulted principally from a decrease in performance fees, and was partially 
offset by an increase in average assets under management. The increase in 
average assets under management of 48% from 1999 to 2000 was primarily 
attributable to positive net client cash flows from directly managed assets and 
the increase in the value of assets under management attributable to equity 
market performance. 
 
    MUTUAL FUND DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL 
 
    The increase in revenue in 2001 resulted principally from an increase in 
average assets under management. The increase in average assets under management 
of 17% from 2000 to 2001 was primarily attributable to positive net client cash 
flows from directly managed assets and our investment in Friess Associates, LLC 
("Friess") in October 2001, and was partially offset by a decline in the value 
of assets under management attributable to equity market performance. The 
increase in revenue in 2000 was principally the result of an increase in average 
assets under management, which increased 32% from 1999 to 2000 as a result of 
positive net client cash flows from directly managed assets, and the increase in 
the value of assets under management attributable to equity market performance. 
 
    INSTITUTIONAL DISTRIBUTION CHANNEL 
 
    The decrease in revenue in 2001 resulted from the decrease in average assets 
under management, and in particular from the decrease in our directly managed 
assets. The decrease in average assets under management of 31% from 2000 to 2001 
was primarily attributable to net client cash outflows from directly managed and 
overlay assets, as well as a decline in the value of assets under management 
attributable to equity market performance. The decrease in revenue in 2000 
resulted principally from a significant decrease in performance fees, and was 
partially offset by an increase in average assets under management. The increase 
in average assets under management of 14% in 2000 from 1999 was primarily 
attributable to our new investment in Frontier in January 2000. 
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    OPERATING EXPENSES 
 
    The following table presents a summary of our consolidated operating 
expenses (our holding company expenses and our Affiliates' Operating 
Allocations). 
 
(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS) 1999 2000
% CHANGE 2001 % CHANGE - -------
-------------- -------- --------

-------- -------- --------
Compensation and related

expenses................ $217.8
$174.8 (20%) $134.9 (23%)

Selling, general and
administrative..............

53.3 68.2 28% 73.8 8%
Amortization of intangible

assets................ 22.2 26.4
19% 28.4 8% Depreciation and

other amortization..............
3.9 4.6 18% 5.7 24% Other

operating
expenses.........................
8.9 10.3 16% 11.1 8% ------ ----

-- ------ Total operating
expenses.....................
$306.1 $284.3 (7%) $253.9 (11%)

====== ====== ======
 
 
    Because substantially all of these expenses (excluding intangible 
amortization) are incurred by our Affiliates and because Affiliate expenses are 
generally limited to an Operating Allocation, our total operating expenses are 
impacted by increases or decreases in an Affiliate's revenue which 
correspondingly increase or decrease that Affiliate's Operating Allocation. 
Total operating expenses (excluding intangible amortization) decreased 13% from 
2000 to 2001, following a 9% decrease from 1999 to 2000, reflecting the general 
relationship between revenue and the Operating Allocations for Affiliates with 
revenue sharing arrangements. 
 
    Compensation and related expenses decreased 23% in 2001 and 20% in 2000, 
primarily as a result of the relationship between revenue and operating expenses 
described above. Selling, general and administrative expenses increased 8% from 
2000 to 2001 and 28% from 1999 to 2000. The increase in 2001 was attributable to 
increases in spending by our Affiliates from their Operating Allocations and an 
increase in aggregate Affiliate expenses resulting from our investments in 
Friess and Welch & Forbes. The increase in 2000 principally resulted from the 
growth in mutual fund distribution expenses as a result of the acquisition of 
Managers in 1999 and the subsequent growth in Managers' revenue and related 
distribution expenses. The increases in amortization of intangible assets of 8% 
and 19% in 2001 and 2000, respectively, resulted from our investments in new 
Affiliates and our purchase of additional interests in existing Affiliates. The 
increase in amortization expenses in 2001 is less than the increase in 2000 
because of the timing of new investments and changes in accounting rules. The 
Frontier investment was completed in January 2000, while the Friess and Welch & 
Forbes investments were completed in October 2001 and November 2001, 
respectively. In addition, in accordance with new accounting rules, we did not 
amortize the goodwill acquired in our 2001 investments. 
 
    OTHER INCOME STATEMENT DATA 
 
    The following table summarizes other income statement data. 
 
(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS) 1999

2000 % CHANGE 2001 %
CHANGE - -----------------
---- -------- -------- ---
----- -------- --------

Minority
interest...................
$86.2 $65.3 (24%) $61.4

(6%) Income tax
expense..................
56.7 39.0 (31%) 33.3 (15%)

Interest
expense....................
11.8 15.8 34% 14.7 (7%)
Investment and other



income......... 14.2 2.3
(84%) 5.1 122%

 
 
    Minority interest decreased 6% from 2000 to 2001, following a 24% decrease 
from 1999 to 2000. The decrease in 2001 resulted from the decline in revenue, 
and was partially offset by the growth in revenue at Affiliates in which we own 
relatively lower percentages of Owners' Allocation. The decrease in 2000 was 
attributable to the significant level of performance fees earned in 1999 and 
resultant higher levels of Owners' Allocation accruing to Affiliate managers 
that did not recur to the same extent in 2000. In percentage terms, the decrease 
in minority interest in 2000 was greater than the decrease in 
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revenue in 2000 because of the revenue growth at Managers, which has no related 
minority interest expense since we own substantially all of the firm. 
 
    The 15% decrease in income taxes from 2000 to 2001 was attributable to the 
decrease in income before taxes, and to a decrease in our effective tax rate 
from 41% to 40%. Our effective tax rate, which decreased from 44% to 41% in 
2000, continued to decrease in 2001 as a result of a reduction in state taxes 
(which resulted from the addition of Affiliates in lower tax rate jurisdictions) 
and our implementation of an incentive compensation plan, which limited 
non-deductible expenses. 
 
    Interest expense decreased 7% in 2001 and increased 34% in 2000. The 
decrease in interest expense in 2001 resulted from the restructuring of our 
long-term debt to effect lower costs of borrowing and a decrease in the 
effective interest rate of our senior revolving credit facility. In May 2001, we 
completed the private placement of $251 million principal amount at maturity of 
zero coupon senior convertible notes accreting at a rate of 0.50% per year, and 
used $101 million of the net proceeds of approximately $221 million to repay 
debt under our credit facility. The decrease in the effective interest rate of 
our senior revolving credit facility was the result of a decrease in LIBOR 
rates. The decrease in interest expense in 2001 was partially offset by 
$3.2 million of amortization of debt issuance costs on the zero coupon notes and 
expenses of $2.0 million related to our transition to the new derivative 
accounting rules. In December 2001, we completed the sale of mandatory 
convertible securities in which we realized net proceeds of approximately 
$194 million. In January 2002, the sale of over-allotment units increased the 
total net proceeds from this offering to $223 million. Interest expense in 2001 
was not materially affected by this transaction because it occurred in the final 
month of the year. The increase in interest expense in 2000 was the result of an 
increase in the weighted average debt outstanding under our credit facility and 
increases in LIBOR interest rates. The increase in weighted average debt 
outstanding was attributable to our investment in Frontier and our repurchase of 
shares of our Common Stock, and was partially offset by debt repayments from 
cash flows from operations. 
 
    The increase in investment and other income from 2000 to 2001 was 
attributable to the investment of proceeds realized from the sale of convertible 
notes described above. The decrease in investment and other income from 1999 to 
2000 was primarily related to the significant levels of income recognized from 
Affiliates' interests in investment partnerships in 1999 that did not occur to 
the same degree in 2000. 
 
    NET INCOME AND OTHER FINANCIAL DATA 
 
    The following table summarizes historical levels of net income and other 
supplemental measures concerning cash related earnings presented as an addition 
to, but not as a substitute for, net income. 
 
(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS) 1999 2000 %
CHANGE 2001 % CHANGE - ------------
--------- -------- -------- -------

- -------- -------- Net
Income..........................
$72.2 $56.7 (21%) $50.0 (12%)

EBITDA
Contribution................. 184.5

164.7 (11%) 150.1 (9%)
EBITDA..............................
166.8 142.4 (15%) 132.1 (7%) Cash
Net Income.....................

98.3 87.7 (11%) 84.1 (4%)
 
 
    The 12% and 21% decreases in net income in 2001 and 2000, respectively, 
resulted principally from the changes in the EBITDA Contribution of our 
Affiliates and, in 2000, from an increase in interest expense and amortization 



expense (as discussed previously), which did not recur in 2001. The 2001 and 
2000 decreases in EBITDA Contribution and EBITDA were principally attributable 
to the factors that affected our revenue in these years, as discussed 
previously. 
 
    Cash Net Income decreased 4% and 11% in 2001 and 2000, respectively, 
primarily as a result of the previously described factors affecting net income, 
excluding the changes in depreciation and amortization during these periods. 
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES 
 
    The following table summarizes certain key financial data relating to our 
liquidity and capital resources as of December 31 in the years indicated below: 
 
(DOLLARS IN MILLIONS) 1999 2000 2001
- --------------------- -------- ----
---- -------- BALANCE SHEET DATA Cash

and cash
equivalents.........................

$ 53.9 $ 31.6 $ 73.4 Senior bank
debt..................................

174.5 151.0 25.0 Zero coupon
convertible

debt...................... -- --
227.9 Mandatory convertible

debt........................ -- --
200.0 CASH FLOW DATA Operating cash

flows.............................. $
89.1 $ 153.7 $ 96.2 Investing cash
flows..............................
(112.9) (111.7) (343.7) Financing

cash
flows..............................

54.0 (64.0) 289.3
 
 
    We have met our cash requirements primarily through borrowings from our 
banks, cash generated by operating activities and the issuance of equity and 
convertible debt securities. Our principal uses of cash have been to make 
investments, repay indebtedness, pay income taxes, repurchase shares, make 
additional investments in existing Affiliates (including our purchase of 
Affiliate managers' retained equity), support our and our Affiliates' operating 
activities and for working capital purposes. We expect that our principal uses 
of funds for the foreseeable future will be for additional investments, 
distributions to Affiliate managers, payment of interest on outstanding debt, 
payment of income taxes, capital expenditures, additional investments in 
existing Affiliates (including our purchase of Affiliate managers' retained 
equity) and for working capital purposes. 
 
    Under our senior revolving credit facility, we had outstanding borrowings of 
$25 million and $305 million of additional capacity as of December 31, 2001. 
While we have the option, with the consent of our lenders, to increase the 
facility by another $70 million to a total of $400 million, the pending maturity 
of our credit facility will likely limit our potential to exercise that option. 
Our borrowings under the credit facility are collateralized by pledges of all of 
our interests in our Affiliates (including all interests which are directly held 
by us, as well as all interests which are indirectly held by us through 
wholly-owned subsidiaries), which interests represent substantially all of our 
assets. In addition, our credit facility contains provisions for the benefit of 
our lenders that restrict the manner in which we can conduct our business, that 
may adversely affect our ability to make investments in new and existing 
Affiliates and that may have an adverse impact on the interests of our 
stockholders. Our credit facility bears interest at either LIBOR plus a margin 
or the Prime Rate plus a margin. In order to partially offset our exposure to 
changing interest rates, we have entered into interest rate hedging contracts, 
as discussed below in "Market Risk." The credit facility matures in 
December 2002, and we intend to obtain new credit financing prior to that time. 
However, we may not be able to obtain this financing on terms comparable to our 
current credit facility. Our failure to do so could increase our interest 
expense, decrease our net income and adversely affect our ability to fund new 
investments and otherwise use our credit facility as described above. 
 
    Our obligations to purchase additional equity in our Affiliates extend over 
the next 15 years. As of December 31, 2001, if all of these obligations became 
due in their entirety, the aggregate amount of these obligations and other 
obligations for contingent payments would have been approximately $678 million. 
Assuming the closing of the additional purchases, we would own the prospective 
Owners' Allocation of all additional equity so purchased, currently estimated to 
represent approximately $86 million on an annualized basis. In order to provide 



the funds necessary for us to meet such obligations and for us to continue to 
acquire interests in investment management firms, it may be necessary for us to 
incur, from time to time, additional debt and/or to issue equity or debt 
securities, 
 
                                       27 
 
depending on market and other conditions. For example, in 2001 we sold 
$251 million principal amount at maturity of zero coupon convertible senior 
notes and $230 million of mandatory convertible securities (including an 
over-allotment exercised in January 2002). We may be required to repurchase some 
or all of the zero coupon convertible senior notes on various dates commencing 
May 7, 2002. These potential obligations, combined with our other cash needs, 
may require more cash than is available from operations. Thus, we may need to 
raise capital by making additional borrowings or by selling shares of our stock 
or other equity or debt securities, or to otherwise refinance a portion of these 
obligations. There can be no assurance that such additional financing or 
refinancing will be available on terms acceptable to us, if at all. Please see 
the discussion of our repurchase obligations under the zero coupon convertible 
senior notes in "Financing Cash Flows" below. 
 
    Cash and cash equivalents aggregated $73.4 million at December 31, 2001, an 
increase of $41.8 million from December 31, 2000. Excluding balances held by our 
Affiliates, we had approximately $44.6 million in cash and cash equivalents at 
December 31, 2001. 
 
    OPERATING CASH FLOWS 
 
    The decrease in net cash flow from operating activities from 2000 to 2001 
and the increase from 1999 to 2000 resulted principally from operating cash 
flows received in 2000 from performance fees earned in the fourth quarter of 
1999, which did not occur to the same degree in either 1999 or 2001. 
 
    INVESTING CASH FLOWS 
 
    Year-to-year changes in net cash flow from investing activities result 
primarily from our investments in new and existing Affiliates. Net cash flow 
used to make investments was $336.0 million, $104.4 million, and 
$103.5 million, for the years ended December 31, 2001, 2000 and 1999, 
respectively. In October 2001, we completed our $241 million investment in 
Friess, which we funded through borrowings under our senior credit facility and 
working capital. In 2001, we also completed new investments in Welch & Forbes, 
Bowling Portfolio Management, Dublin Fund Distributors and additional 
investments in existing Affiliates. These investments were funded through 
borrowings under our credit facility, working capital, notes issued to Affiliate 
managers and issuances of our Common Stock. 
 
    FINANCING CASH FLOWS 
 
    The increase in net cash flow from financing activities from 2000 to 2001 
was attributable to the sale of convertible debt securities, further described 
below. The decrease in net cash flow from financing activities from 1999 to 2000 
was attributable to our 1999 follow-on offering of shares of our Common Stock 
and our repurchases of shares of our Common Stock in 2000 pursuant to our stock 
repurchase program, further described below. The principal sources of cash from 
financing activities over the last three years have been issuances of 
convertible debt securities, borrowings under our senior credit facility and our 
public offering of shares of Common Stock. Our uses of cash from financing 
activities during this period were for the repayment of debt and for the 
repurchase of shares of our Common Stock. 
 
    In May 2001, we completed the private placement of zero coupon senior 
convertible notes in which we realized net proceeds of approximately 
$221 million. Approximately $101 million of the net proceeds were used to repay 
debt under our senior revolving credit facility, and the balance was used for 
other general corporate purposes. In this private placement, we sold a total of 
$251 million principal amount at maturity of zero coupon senior convertible 
notes due 2021, with each $1,000 note issued at 90.50% of such principal amount 
and accreting at a rate of 0.50% per annum. Each security is convertible into 
11.62 shares of our Common Stock upon the occurrence of any of the following 
events: (i) if for certain six-calendar month periods, the closing sale prices 
of our Common Stock are more 
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than a specified price (initially $93.53 and increasing incrementally each six 
calendar-month period for the next 20 years to $94.62 on April 1, 2021); 
(ii) if the credit rating assigned to the securities is below a specified level; 
(iii) if we call the securities for redemption; or (iv) if we take certain 
corporate actions. We have the option to redeem the securities for cash on or 
after May 7, 2006, and the holders may require us to repurchase the securities 



at their accreted value on May 7 of 2002, 2004, 2006, 2011 and 2016. The 
purchase price for such repurchases may be paid in cash or shares of our Common 
Stock. 
 
    In December 2001, we completed a public offering of mandatory convertible 
debt securities (the "FELINE PRIDES"), in which we realized net proceeds of 
approximately $194 million. In January 2002, the sale of an over-allotment of 
these securities increased our total net proceeds to $223 million. Approximately 
$183 million of the net proceeds were used to repay debt under our senior 
revolving credit facility, and the balance was used for other general corporate 
purposes. Each FELINE PRIDE initially consists of a unit referred to as an 
Income PRIDE, which includes (i) a senior note due November 17, 2006 with a 
principal amount of $25, on which we will pay interest quarterly at the initial 
annual rate of 6%, and (ii) a forward purchase contract pursuant to which the 
holder has agreed to purchase, for $25, shares of our Common Stock on 
November 17, 2004, with such number of shares to be determined based upon the 
average trading price of our Common Stock for a period preceding that date. 
 
    Each of the senior notes is pledged to us to secure the holder's obligations 
under the forward purchase contracts. A holder of an Income PRIDE can obtain the 
release of the pledged senior notes by substituting certain zero coupon treasury 
securities as security for performance under the forward purchase contract. The 
resulting unit consisting of the zero coupon treasury security and the forward 
purchase contract would be a Growth PRIDE, and the senior notes would be a 
separate security. In August 2004, the senior notes will be remarketed, and the 
interest rate will be reset, such that the total proceeds will be $230 million. 
The holders will use the proceeds of the remarketing to fund their obligations 
to purchase shares of our Common Stock under the forward purchase contract. The 
number of shares of our Common Stock to be issued will be determined by the 
price of our Common Stock at that time, subject to the total proceeds from the 
remarketing equaling $230 million. 
 
    During the year ended December 31, 2001, we repurchased 157,100 shares of 
Common Stock at an average price of $57.97, with borrowings under our credit 
facility. The repurchases were pursuant to two share repurchase programs 
authorized by our Board of Directors in October 1999 and April 2000. Each 
program authorized us to repurchase up to 5% of our issued and outstanding 
shares of Common Stock in open market transactions, with the timing of purchases 
and the amount of stock purchased determined at our discretion. At December 31, 
2001, 513,681 shares remain authorized to be repurchased under these repurchase 
programs. 
 
    INTEREST RATE SENSITIVITY 
 
    Our revenue is derived primarily from fees which are based on the values of 
assets managed. Such values are affected by changes in the broader financial 
markets which are, in part, affected by changing interest rates. We cannot 
predict the effects that interest rates or changes in interest rates may have on 
either the broader financial markets or our Affiliates' assets under management 
and associated fees. 
 
    With respect to any debt financing, we may be exposed to potential 
fluctuations in the amount of interest expense resulting from changing interest 
rates. We seek to offset such exposure in part by entering into interest rate 
hedging contracts. See "Market Risk." 
 
    MARKET RISK 
 
    We use interest rate derivative contracts to manage market exposures 
associated with our variable rate debt by creating offsetting market exposures. 
As of December 31, 2000, we were a party, with two 
 
                                       29 
 
major commercial banks as counterparties, to $185 million notional amount of 
interest rate hedging contracts which were linked to the three-month LIBOR rate. 
We closed these contracts in January 2001 in conjunction with the implementation 
of the new derivative accounting standard, Statement of Financial Accounting 
Standard No. 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities" 
("FAS 133"), as described below. 
 
    During February 2001, we became a party, with two major commercial banks as 
counterparties, to $50 million notional amount of interest rate swap contracts 
that are linked to the three-month LIBOR rate. Under these swap contracts, we 
agreed to exchange the difference between fixed-rate and floating-rate interest 
amounts calculated by reference to the notional amount. In February 2002, we 
closed $25 million notional amount of these contracts and entered into a new 
$25 million notional amount contract. The new swap contract does not qualify for 
hedge accounting under FAS 133. 
 
    In using these derivative instruments, we face certain risks that are not 



directly related to market movements and are therefore not easy to quantify, and 
as such are not represented in the analysis which follows. These risks include 
country risk, legal risk and credit risk. Credit risk, or the risk of loss 
arising from a counterparty's failure or inability to meet payment or 
performance terms of a contract, is a particularly significant element of an 
interest rate swap contract. We attempt to control this risk through analysis of 
our counterparties and ongoing examinations of outstanding payments and 
delinquencies. 
 
    We have performed a sensitivity analysis on our hedged contract assuming a 
hypothetical 10% adverse movement in LIBOR rates, sustained for three months. 
This analysis reflects the impact of such movement on the combination of our 
senior debt under our revolving credit facility and our interest rate derivative 
contracts, by multiplying the notional amount of the interest rate derivative 
contract by the effect of a 10% decrease in LIBOR rates, and then factoring in 
the offsetting interest rate savings on the underlying senior debt. As of 
March 22, 2002, this analysis indicated that this hypothetical movement in LIBOR 
rates would have resulted in a quarterly loss, net of taxes, of approximately 
$110,600. 
 
    We have performed a similar sensitivity analysis on our unhedged contract 
assuming a hypothetical 10% adverse movement in LIBOR rates sustained for three 
months. This analysis reflects the impact of such movement on our interest rate 
derivative contracts, by multiplying the notional amount of the interest rate 
derivative contract by the effect of a 10% decrease in LIBOR rates. As of 
March 22, 2002, this analysis indicated that this hypothetical movement in LIBOR 
rates would have resulted in a quarterly loss, net of taxes, of approximately 
$108,800. 
 
    There can be no assurance that we will continue to maintain such derivative 
contracts at their existing levels of coverage or that the amount of coverage 
maintained will cover all of our indebtedness outstanding at any such time. 
Therefore, there can be no assurance that the derivative contracts will meet 
their overall objective of reducing our interest expense. In addition, there can 
be no assurance that we will be successful in obtaining derivative contracts in 
the future on our existing or any new indebtedness. 
 
RECENT ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS 
 
    In 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the "FASB") issued 
FAS 133, which standardized the accounting for derivative instruments by 
requiring that all derivatives be recognized as assets and liabilities and 
measured at fair value. In 1999, Statement of Financial Accounting Standards 
No. 137, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities--Deferral 
of Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 133--an amendment to FASB Statement 133" 
deferred the effective date of FAS 133 to financial statements for fiscal years 
beginning after June 15, 2000. We adopted FAS 133 on January 1, 2001, and 
reported a $2.2 million transition adjustment, the substantial portion of which 
was reclassified to earnings in 2001. 
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    In July 2001, the FASB issued Financial Accounting Standard No. 141 
("FAS 141"), "Business Combinations," and FAS 142 ("Goodwill and Other 
Intangible Assets"). FAS 141 limits the method of accounting for business 
combinations to the purchase method and establishes new criteria for the 
recognition of other intangible assets. FAS 142 requires that goodwill and other 
intangible assets with indefinite lives no longer be amortized, but instead be 
tested for impairment at least annually. We adopted FAS 141 on July 1, 2001 and 
FAS 142 on January 1, 2002. In accordance with FAS 141, goodwill and any other 
intangible assets determined to have indefinite lives that were acquired in a 
purchase business combination completed after June 30, 2001 (i.e., Friess and 
Welch & Forbes) were not amortized from the date of their acquisition. 
 
    As a result of the effectiveness of FAS 142, FAS 141 now requires that 
intangibles acquired in prior business combinations be reviewed for impairment. 
Any impairment loss will be measured as of the date of the adoption and 
recognized as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the 
first interim period. At this time, we do not expect that the adoption of these 
statements will result in any reclassification of goodwill or impairment of 
intangible assets. 
 
    On October 3, 2001, the FASB issued Financial Accounting Standard No. 144 
("FAS 144"), "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets." 
FAS 144 establishes new rules for the recognition and measurement of asset 
impairment as well as the reporting of disposals of a business segment and the 
recognition of losses from the discontinuation of operations. FAS 144 will be 
effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2001. We adopted 
FAS 144 on January 1, 2002. We do not believe that the adoption of FAS 144 will 
have a material effect on our financial statements. 
 



CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
    INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 
    In allocating the purchase price of our acquisitions and assessing the 
recoverability of our intangible assets, we must make assumptions regarding 
estimated future cash flows and other factors to determine the value of the 
respective assets. If these estimates or their related assumptions change in the 
future, we may be required to record impairment charges. 
 
    DEFERRED TAXES 
 
    We record a valuation allowance to reduce our deferred tax assets to an 
amount that is more likely than not to be realized. While we have considered 
future taxable income projections and ongoing tax planning strategies in 
assessing the need for the valuation allowance, if we determine that we could 
realize these assets in the future, an adjustment to the valuation allowance 
would increase income in the period such determination was made. Likewise, 
should we determine that we would not be able to realize all or part of our 
deferred tax asset in the future, an adjustment to the valuation allowance would 
be charged to income in the period such determination was made. 
 
ECONOMIC AND MARKET CONDITIONS 
 
    Although domestic equity markets have experienced continued volatility and 
steep declines over the 21-month period ended December 31, 2001, the asset 
management industry has experienced strong growth over the last five years. 
 
    We believe that the asset management industry will continue to grow, and 
that such growth will be realized at different rates in the three principal 
distribution channels for our Affiliates' products. For example, a recent study 
predicts that the number of individuals with $500,000 to $5 million in 
investable assets, which was estimated to be 6.4 million in 1999, will grow to 
9.6 million by 2005. We believe that this projected trend will result in the 
continued growth of the asset management industry within the High Net Worth 
distribution channel. Further, we anticipate that the evolution of so-called 
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"open architecture" arrangements between asset managers and unaffiliated 
distribution organizations will continue to have a positive impact on 
independent investment management organizations. 
 
    In addition, demographic trends are expected to continue to have a favorable 
impact on the growth in retirement assets. One financial services institution 
predicts that private retirement assets will grow to $11.2 trillion by 2005, 
compared to $7.0 trillion in 2000 and $4.0 trillion in 1995. While the 
individual retirement account market (the assets of which are typically invested 
in mutual funds) is anticipated to grow at the fastest rate, the defined 
contribution market is expected to grow 11.8% over that period, and the defined 
benefit market (which is a principal component of the Institutional channel) is 
expected to grow 8.0%. As another example of the anticipated growth in the 
Institutional channel, one study predicts that endowment and foundation assets 
(which were approximately $800 billion in 2000) are expected to grow at an 
annual rate of 8.0% through 2005. 
 
    Domestic and foreign economic conditions and general trends in business and 
finance, among other factors, affect the financial markets and businesses 
operating in the securities industry. We cannot guarantee that broader market 
performance will be favorable in the future. A continued decline in the 
financial markets or a lack of sustained growth may result in a corresponding 
decline in our Affiliates' performance and may cause our Affiliates to 
experience declining assets under management and/or fees, which would reduce 
cash flow distributable to us. 
 
INTERNATIONAL OPERATIONS 
 
    First Quadrant Limited, a sister company to First Quadrant, L.P., is 
organized and headquartered in London, England. Tweedy, Browne Company LLC, 
which is based in New York, also maintains a research office in London. Edgehill 
Select Group, S.A.R.L., a subsidiary of Dublin Fund Distributors, N.V., in which 
we own a minority interest, is organized and headquartered in Paris. In the 
future, we may invest in other investment management firms which are located 
and/or conduct a significant part of their operations outside of the United 
States. There are certain risks inherent in doing business internationally, such 
as changes in applicable laws and regulatory requirements, difficulties in 
staffing and managing foreign operations, longer payment cycles, difficulties in 
collecting investment advisory fees receivable, political instability, 
fluctuations in currency exchange rates, expatriation controls and potential 
adverse tax consequences. There can be no assurance that one or more of such 
factors will not have a material adverse effect on our affiliated investment 



management firms that have international operations or on other investment 
management firms in which we may invest in the future and, consequently, on our 
business, financial condition and results of operations. 
 
INFLATION 
 
    We do not believe that inflation or changing prices have had a material 
impact on our results of operations. 
 
ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK 
 
    For quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk affecting us, 
see "Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of 
Operations--Market Risk" in Item 7 above, which is incorporated herein by 
reference. 
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ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA 
 
                       REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 
 
TO THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND STOCKHOLDERS OF 
AFFILIATED MANAGERS GROUP, INC.: 
 
    In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated balance sheets and the related 
consolidated statements of operations, changes in stockholders' equity and cash 
flows present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. at December 31, 2000 and 2001, and the results 
of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period 
ended December 31, 2001 in conformity with accounting principles generally 
accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are the 
responsibility of the Company's management; our responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our 
audits of these statements in accordance with auditing standards generally 
accepted in the United States of America, which require that we plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements 
are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, 
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We 
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion. 
 
                                          PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
 
Boston, Massachusetts 
March 28, 2002 
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                        AFFILIATED MANAGERS GROUP, INC. 
 
                          CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS 
 
                                 (IN THOUSANDS) 
 
DECEMBER 31, --------------------- 2000 2001 --------

---------- ASSETS Current assets: Cash and cash
equivalents................................. $ 31,612

$ 73,427 Investment advisory fees
receivable....................... 66,126 57,148 Other
current assets......................................

15,448 9,464 -------- ---------- Total current
assets.................................... 113,186

140,039 Fixed assets,
net........................................... 15,346

17,802 Equity investment in
Affiliate.............................. 1,816 1,732
Acquired client relationships, net of accumulated
amortization of $33,775 in 2000 and $46,033 in
2001....... 199,354 319,645 Goodwill, net of

accumulated amortization of $51,939 in 2000 and
$68,113 in

2001....................................... 444,116
655,311 Other

assets................................................
19,912 25,792 -------- ---------- Total

assets............................................
$793,730 $1,160,321 ======== ========== LIABILITIES

AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued



liabilities.................. $ 86,800 $ 67,136 Zero
coupon convertible debt..............................

-- 227,894 Senior bank
debt.......................................... --

25,000 -------- ---------- Total current
liabilities............................... 86,800

320,030 Senior bank
debt............................................

151,000 -- Mandatory convertible
debt.................................. -- 200,000

Deferred
taxes..............................................

31,907 38,081 Other long-term
liabilities................................. 3,436

23,795 -------- ---------- Total
liabilities.......................................

273,143 581,906 Commitments and
contingencies............................... -- --

Minority
interest...........................................
26,677 35,075 Stockholders' equity: Common Stock
($.01 par value; 80,000 shares authorized; 23,519

shares outstanding in 2000 and 2001)...............
235 235 Additional paid-in

capital.................................. 407,057
405,087 Accumulated other comprehensive income

(loss)............... (342) (846) Retained
earnings...........................................
140,513 190,502 -------- ---------- 547,463 594,978
Less treasury shares, at cost (1,477 shares in 2000

and 1,309 shares in
2001)..................................... (53,553)
(51,638) -------- ---------- Total stockholders'

equity.............................. 493,910 543,340
-------- ---------- Total liabilities and
stockholders' equity.............. $793,730

$1,160,321 ======== ==========
 
 
   The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial 
                                  statements. 
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                        AFFILIATED MANAGERS GROUP, INC. 
 
                     CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS 
 
                 (DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS, EXCEPT PER SHARE DATA) 
 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, --------------------
------------------- 1999 2000 2001 ----------- ------

----- -----------
Revenue...............................................

$ 518,726 $ 458,708 $ 408,210 Operating expenses:
Compensation and related expenses...................
217,780 174,710 134,900 Amortization of intangible

assets................... 22,229 26,409 28,432
Depreciation and other amortization.................

3,901 4,611 5,669 Selling, general and
administrative................. 53,251 68,216 73,779
Other operating expenses............................
8,906 10,327 11,143 ----------- ----------- ---------
-- 306,067 284,273 253,923 ----------- ----------- --

--------- Operating
income...................................... 212,659
174,435 154,287 Non-operating (income) and expenses:
Investment and other income.........................

(14,237) (2,264) (5,105) Interest
expense.................................... 11,764
15,750 14,728 ----------- ----------- -----------

(2,473) 13,486 9,623 ----------- ----------- --------
--- Income before minority interest and income
taxes...... 215,132 160,949 144,664 Minority
interest.....................................

(86,225) (65,341) (61,350) ----------- ----------- --
--------- Income before income

taxes............................ 128,907 95,608
83,314 Income

taxes..........................................
56,719 38,952 33,325 ----------- ----------- --------



--- Net
income............................................ $

72,188 $ 56,656 $ 49,989 =========== ===========
=========== Earnings per share--

basic............................. $ 3.25 $ 2.54 $
2.26 =========== =========== =========== Earnings per
share--diluted........................... $ 3.18 $
2.49 $ 2.20 =========== =========== ===========

Average shares outstanding--
basic..................... 22,180,112 22,307,476

22,136,410 Average shares outstanding--
diluted................... 22,693,016 22,748,595

22,732,129
 
 
   The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial 
                                  statements. 
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                        AFFILIATED MANAGERS GROUP, INC. 
 
                     CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
 
                                 (IN THOUSANDS) 
 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, ----------------------
----------- 1999 2000 2001 --------- --------- --------

- Cash flow from operating activities: Net
income................................................
$ 72,188 $ 56,656 $ 49,989 Adjustments to reconcile net

income to net cash flow from operating activities:
Amortization of intangible

assets......................... 22,229 26,409 28,432
Depreciation and other

amortization....................... 3,901 4,611 10,031
Deferred income tax

provision............................. 14,936 6,561
5,731 FAS 133 transition

adjustment............................. -- -- (2,203)
Reclassification of FAS 133 adjustment to net
income...... -- -- 1,958 Changes in assets and

liabilities: Decrease (increase) in investment advisory
fees

receivable..............................................
(163,262) 182,241 15,143 Decrease (increase) in other
current assets............... (1,260) (8,639) 6,347

Decrease (increase) in non-current other
receivables...... (10,779) 5,064 90 Increase (decrease)

in accounts payable, accrued expenses and other
liabilities................................... 116,518

(87,073) (27,742) Increase (decrease) in minority
interest.................. 34,648 (32,119) 8,398 ------

-- -------- -------- Cash flow from operating
activities................... 89,119 153,711 96,174 ---
----- -------- -------- Cash flow used in investing

activities: Purchase of fixed
assets.................................. (6,050)
(6,235) (7,230) Costs of investments, net of cash

acquired................ (103,500) (104,438) (335,968)
Distributions received from Affiliate equity
investment... 550 428 670 Increase in other

assets.................................. (486) (699)
(1,146) Loans to

employees........................................
(3,453) (786) -- -------- -------- -------- Cash flow
used in investing activities................ (112,939)
(111,730) (343,674) -------- -------- -------- Cash

flow from (used in) financing activities: Borrowings of
senior bank debt............................ 155,800

193,500 222,300 Repayments of senior bank
debt............................ (171,800) (217,000)

(348,300) Repayments of notes payable to related
parties............ (22,000) -- -- Issuances of debt
securities.............................. -- -- 427,894

Issuances of equity
securities............................ 101,536 8,412

9,130 Repurchase of
stock....................................... (9,322)

(48,858) (9,113) Securities issuance
costs................................. (179) (15)



(12,644) -------- -------- -------- Cash flow from
(used in) financing activities......... 54,035 (63,961)
289,267 Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on cash
flow........ (71) (287) 48 Net increase (decrease) in
cash and cash equivalents........ 30,144 (22,267)
41,815 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of

year.............. 23,735 53,879 31,612 -------- ------
-- -------- Cash and cash equivalents at end of

year.................... $ 53,879 $ 31,612 $ 73,427
======== ======== ======== Supplemental disclosure of

cash flow information: Interest
paid............................................. $

11,654 $ 17,025 $ 9,727 Income taxes
paid......................................... 20,576
52,415 17,732 Supplemental disclosure of non-cash

financing activities: Stock issued for Affiliate equity
purchases............... -- -- 2,276 Notes issued for
Affiliate equity purchases............... -- -- 24,458

Conversion of convertible stock to Common
Stock........... 30,992 -- -- Common Stock received for
the exercise of stock options... -- 1,027 -- Capital
lease obligations for fixed assets................ --

816 --
 
 
   The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial 
                                  statements. 
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           CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
 
                             (DOLLARS IN THOUSANDS) 
 

ADDITIONAL TREASURY
COMMON CONVERTIBLE
COMMON CONVERTIBLE
PAID-IN RETAINED

TREASURY SHARES SHARES
SHARES STOCK STOCK

CAPITAL EARNINGS SHARES
AT COST ---------- ----
------- -------- ------
----- ---------- ------
-- ---------- --------

December 31,
1998.........

17,703,617 1,750,942
$177 $ 30,992 $273,413
$ 11,685 (172,000) $
(2,612) Issuance of

Common Stock..
4,000,938 -- 40 --
101,496 -- -- --
Conversion of
Convertible

Stock...................
1,750,942 (1,750,942)
18 (30,992) 30,974 -- -
- -- Purchase of Common
Stock.. -- -- -- -- --
-- (346,900) (9,322)

Net
income................
-- -- -- -- -- 72,188 -

- -- Other
comprehensive

income..................
-- -- -- -- -- (71) --
-- ---------- ---------
- ---- -------- -------
- -------- ---------- -
------- December 31,

1999.........
23,455,497 -- 235 --

405,883 83,802
(518,900) (11,934) ----
------ ---------- ----
-------- -------- -----



--- ---------- --------
Issuance of Common

Stock.. 63,547 -- -- --
1,227 -- 328,938 8,266
Purchase of Common
Stock.. -- -- -- --
(53) -- (1,287,401)

(49,885) Net
income................
-- -- -- -- -- 56,656 -

- -- Other
comprehensive

income..................
-- -- -- -- -- (287) --
-- ---------- ---------
- ---- -------- -------
- -------- ---------- -
------- December 31,

2000.........
23,519,044 -- 235 --

407,057 140,171
(1,477,363) (53,553) --
-------- ---------- ---
- -------- -------- ---
----- ---------- ------
-- Issuance of Common
Stock.. -- -- -- --
(1,970) -- 325,622
11,028 Purchase of

Common Stock.. -- -- --
-- -- -- (157,100)

(9,113) Net
income................
-- -- -- -- -- 49,989 -

- -- Other
comprehensive

income..................
-- -- -- -- -- (504) --
-- ---------- ---------
- ---- -------- -------
- -------- ---------- -
------- December 31,

2001.........
23,519,044 -- $235 $ --

$405,087 $189,656
(1,308,841) $(51,638)
========== ==========
==== ======== ========
======== ==========

========
 
 
   The accompanying notes are an integral part of the consolidated financial 
                                  statements. 
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                   NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 
1. BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
    ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS 
 
    Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. ("AMG" or the "Company") is an asset 
management company with equity investments in a diverse group of mid-sized 
investment management firms ("Affiliates"). AMG's Affiliates provide investment 
management services, primarily in the United States, to high net worth 
individuals, mutual funds and institutional clients. 
 
    Affiliates are either organized as limited partnerships or limited liability 
companies. AMG has contractual arrangements with many of its Affiliates whereby 
a percentage of revenue is allocable to fund Affiliate operating expenses, 
including compensation (the "Operating Allocation"), while the remaining portion 
of revenue (the "Owners' Allocation") is allocable to AMG and the other partners 
or members, generally with a priority to AMG. In certain other cases (such as, 
for example, The Managers Funds LLC ("Managers")), the Affiliate is not subject 
to a revenue sharing arrangement, but instead operates on a profit-based model. 
As a result, AMG participates fully in any increase or decrease in the revenue 
or expenses of such firms. 



 
    All material intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated. 
All dollar amounts except per share data in the text and tables herein are 
stated in thousands unless otherwise indicated. Certain reclassifications have 
been made to prior years' financial statements to conform to the current year's 
presentation. 
 
    ACCOUNTING FOR INVESTMENTS 
 
    These consolidated financial statements include the accounts of AMG and each 
Affiliate in which AMG has a controlling interest. In each such instance, AMG 
is, directly or indirectly, the sole general partner (in the case of Affiliates 
which are limited partnerships) or sole manager member (in the case of 
Affiliates which are limited liability companies). For Affiliate operations 
consolidated into these financial statements, the portion of the Owners' 
Allocation allocated to owners other than AMG is included in minority interest 
in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Minority interest on the 
Consolidated Balance Sheets includes capital and undistributed Owners' 
Allocation owned by the managers of the consolidated Affiliates. 
 
    Investments where AMG or an Affiliate does not hold a controlling interest 
are generally accounted for under the equity method of accounting, and AMG's 
portion of net income is included in investment and other income. Investments in 
which AMG or the Affiliate owns less than a 20% interest and does not exercise 
significant influence are accounted for under the cost method. Under the cost 
method, AMG's portion of net income is not included in the Consolidated 
Statements of Operations and dividends are recorded when, and if, declared. 
Nevertheless, charges are recognized in the Consolidated Statements of 
Operations if events or circumstances indicate a permanent impairment of the 
carrying value. 
 
    REVENUE RECOGNITION 
 
    The Company's consolidated revenue represents advisory fees billed monthly, 
quarterly and annually by Affiliates for managing the assets of clients. 
Asset-based advisory fees are recognized monthly as services are rendered and 
are based upon a percentage of the market value of client assets managed. Any 
fees collected in advance are deferred and recognized as income over the period 
earned. Performance-based advisory fees are recognized when earned based upon 
either the positive difference 
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             NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
1. BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
between the investment returns on a client's portfolio compared to a benchmark 
index or indices, or an absolute percentage of gain in the client's account as 
measured at the end of the contract period. 
 
    CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
    The Company considers all highly liquid investments with original maturities 
of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents are stated at 
cost, which approximates market value due to the short-term maturity of these 
investments. 
 
    FIXED ASSETS 
 
    Equipment and other fixed assets are recorded at cost and depreciated using 
the straight-line method over their estimated useful lives ranging from three to 
five years. Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of their 
estimated useful lives or the term of the lease. 
 
    ACQUIRED CLIENT RELATIONSHIPS AND GOODWILL 
 
    The purchase price for the acquisition of interests in Affiliates is 
allocated based on the fair value of net assets acquired, primarily acquired 
client relationships. In determining the allocation of purchase price to 
acquired client relationships, the Company analyzes the net present value of 
each acquired Affiliate's existing client relationships based on a number of 
factors including: the Affiliate's historical and potential future operating 
performance; the Affiliate's historical and potential future rates of attrition 
among existing clients; the stability and longevity of existing client 
relationships; the Affiliate's recent, as well as long-term, investment 
performance; the characteristics of the firm's products and investment styles; 
the stability and depth of the Affiliate's management team and the Affiliate's 
history and perceived franchise or brand value. The cost assigned to acquired 
client relationships is amortized using the straight-line method over a weighted 



average life of 22 years. The expected useful lives of acquired client 
relationships are analyzed separately for each acquired Affiliate and determined 
based on an analysis of the historical and potential future attrition rates of 
each Affiliate's existing clients, as well as a consideration of the specific 
attributes of the business of each Affiliate. 
 
    The excess of purchase price for the acquisition of interests in Affiliates 
over the fair value of net assets acquired, including acquired client 
relationships, is classified as goodwill. Prior to the adoption of Financial 
Accounting Standard No. 142, "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets," (FAS 142), 
goodwill was amortized using the straight-line method over a weighted average 
life of 32 years. In determining the amortization period for goodwill, the 
Company considered a number of factors including: the firm's historical and 
potential future operating performance; the characteristics of the firm's 
clients, products and investment styles; as well as the firm's history and 
perceived franchise or brand value. 
 
    As further described in Note 11, the Company periodically purchases 
additional equity interests in Affiliates from minority interest owners. 
Resulting payments made to such owners are generally considered purchase price 
for such acquired interests. The estimated cost of equity that has been awarded 
in connection with employment is accrued, net of estimated forfeitures, over the 
service period as equity-based compensation. 
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    DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS 
 
    Debt issuance costs incurred in securing credit facility financing are 
amortized over the term of the credit facility using the effective interest 
method. Debt issuance costs incurred in issuing the zero coupon convertible 
securities are amortized over the period to the first investor put date. Debt 
issuance costs incurred in issuing the mandatory convertible securities are 
amortized over the period of the forward purchase contract. 
 
    INTEREST RATE HEDGING AGREEMENTS 
 
    The Company periodically enters into interest rate hedging agreements to 
hedge against potential increases in interest rates on the Company's outstanding 
borrowings. The Company's policy is to accrue amounts receivable or payable 
under such agreements as reductions or increases in interest expense, 
respectively. 
 
    INCOME TAXES 
 
    The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the expected 
consequences of temporary differences between the financial statement basis and 
tax basis of the Company's assets and liabilities. A deferred tax valuation 
allowance is established if, in management's opinion, it is more likely than not 
that all or a portion of the Company's deferred tax assets will not be realized. 
 
    FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION 
 
    The assets and liabilities of non-U.S. based Affiliates are translated into 
U.S. dollars at the exchange rates in effect as of the balance sheet date. 
Revenue and expenses are translated at the average monthly exchange rates then 
in effect. 
 
    EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION PLANS 
 
    FAS 123, "Accounting for Stock-Based Compensation", encourages but does not 
require adoption of a fair value-based accounting method for stock-based 
compensation arrangements. An entity may continue to apply Accounting Principles 
Board Opinion No. 25 ("APB 25") and related interpretations, provided the entity 
discloses its pro forma net income and earnings per share as if the fair-value 
based method had been applied in measuring compensation cost. The Company 
continues to apply APB 25 and related interpretations and has provided pro forma 
FAS 123 disclosure in Note 13. 
 
    USE OF ESTIMATES 
 
    The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally 
accepted accounting principles requires management to make estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts included in the financial 
statements and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of 
the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 



 
    RECENT ACCOUNTING DEVELOPMENTS 
 
    In June 1998, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (the "FASB") issued 
FAS 133, "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities." 
FAS 133 standardizes the accounting for derivative instruments which requires 
that all derivatives be recognized as assets and liabilities and 
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1. BUSINESS AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED) 
be measured at fair value. In June 1999, FAS 137, "Accounting for Derivative 
Instruments and Hedging Activities--Deferral of Effective Date of FASB Statement 
No. 133--an amendment to FASB Statement 133" deferred the effective date of 
FAS 133 to financial statements for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2000. 
The Company adopted this standard on January 1, 2001, and the adoption did not 
materially impact its consolidated financial statements. 
 
    In July 2001, the FASB issued Financial Accounting Standard No. 141 
(FAS 141), "Business Combinations," and Financial Accounting Standard No. 142 
(FAS 142), "Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets." FAS 141 limits the method of 
accounting for business combinations to the purchase method and establishes new 
criteria for the recognition of intangible assets. FAS 142 requires that 
goodwill and other intangible assets with indefinite lives no longer be 
amortized, but instead be tested for impairment at least annually. The Company 
adopted FAS 141 on July 1, 2001 and FAS 142 on January 1, 2002. 
 
    While FAS 142 generally became effective January 1, 2002, goodwill and any 
other intangible assets determined to have indefinite lives that were acquired 
in a purchase business combination completed after June 30, 2001 (i.e., the 
Company's investments in Friess Associates, LLC ("Friess") and Welch & 
Forbes, Inc. and Welch & Forbes (a partnership) (collectively, "Welch & 
Forbes")) were not amortized from the date of their acquisition. In 2002, 
approximately $19,000 of intangible amortization reported in 2001 will be 
discontinued as a result of the adoption of FAS 142. 
 
    Upon the effectiveness of FAS 142, FAS 141 requires that intangibles 
acquired in prior business combinations be reviewed for impairment. Any 
impairment loss will be measured as of the date of the adoption and recognized 
as a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle in the first interim 
period. At this time, the Company does not expect that the adoption of these 
statements will result in any reclassification of goodwill or impairment of 
intangible assets. 
 
    On October 3, 2001, the FASB issued Financial Accounting Standard No. 144 
(FAS 144), "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets." 
FAS 144 establishes new rules for the recognition and measurement of asset 
impairment as well as the reporting of disposals of a business segment and the 
recognition of losses from the discontinuation of operations. The Company 
adopted FAS 144 on January 1, 2002. The Company does not believe that the 
adoption of FAS 144 will have a material effect on its financial statements. 
 
2. CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK 
 
    Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant 
concentrations of credit risk consist principally of cash investments and 
investment advisory fees receivable. The Company maintains cash and cash 
equivalents, short-term investments and certain off-balance sheet financial 
instruments with various financial institutions. These financial institutions 
are located in cities in which AMG and its Affiliates operate. For AMG and 
certain Affiliates, cash deposits at a financial institution may exceed FDIC 
insurance limits. 
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             NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) 
 
3. FIXED ASSETS AND LEASE COMMITMENTS 
 
    Fixed assets consist of the following: 
 
AT DECEMBER 31, ------------------- 2000 2001 ----

---- -------- Office
equipment..........................................

$12,910 $15,306 Furniture and



fixtures.................................... 8,128
11,649 Leasehold

improvements....................................
6,091 8,181 Computer

software.........................................
3,699 3,837 ------- ------- Total fixed

assets......................................
30,828 38,973 ------- ------- Accumulated

depreciation..................................
(15,482) (21,171) ------- ------- Fixed assets,

net....................................... $15,346
$17,802 ======= =======

 
 
    The Company and its Affiliates lease computer equipment and office space for 
their operations. At December 31, 2001, the Company's aggregate future minimum 
payments for operating leases having initial or noncancelable lease terms 
greater than one year are payable as follows: 
 
REQUIRED MINIMUM YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, PAYMENTS - ------

------------------ ----------------
2002........................................................

$11,750
2003........................................................

10,696
2004........................................................

9,380
2005........................................................

7,728
2006........................................................

6,281
Thereafter..................................................

18,742
 
 
    Consolidated rent expense for 1999, 2000 and 2001 was $8,906, $10,327 and 
$11,143, respectively. 
 
    In 2001, the Company entered into a lease agreement with an owner-lessor 
trust ("Lessor") to finance the construction of its new corporate headquarters 
building in Prides Crossing, Massachusetts (the "Building"). In accordance with 
SFAS No. 13 "Accounting for Leases" and related FASB Emerging Issues Task Force 
("EITF") issues (including EITF Issue No. 90-15, "Impact of Non-substantive 
Lessors, Residual Value Guarantees, and Other Provisions in Leasing 
Transactions" and EITF Issue No. 97-10, "The Effect of Lessee Involvement in 
Asset Construction"), the Building and the related lease obligations are not 
included on the Company's consolidated balance sheet. The initial lease term is 
approximately five years, beginning at the date of the completion of 
construction, which occurred in December 2001. At the end of the lease term, the 
Company has the option to extend the lease or purchase the Building for the then 
outstanding amounts expended by the Lessor for the Building. If the Company 
chooses not to extend the lease or acquire the Building, then it is contingently 
liable for 85% of the construction costs. The Company would also have contingent 
payment obligations to the Lessor if an event of default should occur during the 
lease period. If the Company defaults, then its obligation would equal up to 
100% of the Lessor's investment in the Building, which could exceed the 
aforementioned contingent liability. 
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4. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES 
 
    Accounts payable and accrued liabilities consisted of the following: 
 
AT DECEMBER 31, ------------------- 2000 2001 -------- --

------ Accounts
payable.......................................... $ 1,309

$ 1,634 Accrued
compensation...................................... 62,992

38,738 Accrued income
taxes...................................... 2,683 5,615

Accrued
rent.............................................. 2,001

1,772 Accrued
interest.......................................... 369

115 Deferred
revenue.......................................... 1,633



1,546 Accrued professional
services............................. 1,241 764

Other.....................................................
14,572 16,952 ------- ------- $86,800 $67,136 =======

=======
 
 
5. BENEFIT PLANS 
 
    The Company has two defined contribution plans consisting of a qualified 
employee profit-sharing plan covering substantially all of its full-time 
employees and five of its Affiliates, and a non-qualified plan for certain 
senior employees. Twelve of AMG's other Affiliates have separate defined 
contribution retirement plans. Under each of the qualified plans, AMG and each 
Affiliate are able to make discretionary contributions to qualified plan 
participants up to IRS limits. Consolidated expenses related to both the 
qualified and non-qualified plans in 1999, 2000 and 2001 were $8,728, $10,759 
and $5,669, respectively. 
 
    The Company's contribution to the non-qualified plan (the "Plan") was 
$5,000, $6,225 and $0 for the years ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001, 
respectively. Plan balances are invested equally between the Company's Common 
Stock and Affiliate investment products. These irrevocable contributions were 
expensed when contributed and are distributable to each participant beginning in 
2002, with full vesting occurring in 2005. Realized gains on undistributed 
balances are paid currently to participants. Plan balances that are forfeited 
upon employee termination are reallocated to the remaining participants in 
accordance with the terms of the Plan. 
 
6. DEBT 
 
    The Company has a $330,000 revolving Credit Facility ("Credit Facility"), 
which matures on December 22, 2002. The Company has the option, with the consent 
of its lenders, to increase the facility by another $70,000 to a total of 
$400,000. Interest is payable at rates up to 1.25% over the Prime Rate or up to 
2.25% over LIBOR on amounts borrowed. The Company pays a commitment fee of up to 
0.5% on the daily unused portion of the facility, which amounted to $297, $252 
and $474 for the years ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001, respectively. 
 
    The effective interest rates on the outstanding borrowings were 7.2% and 
2.6% at December 31, 2000 and 2001, respectively. All borrowings under the 
Credit Facility are collateralized by pledges of all capital stock or other 
equity interests in each AMG Affiliate owned and to be acquired. The credit 
agreement contains certain financial covenants which require the Company to 
maintain specified minimum levels of net worth and interest coverage ratios and 
maximum levels of indebtedness, all as defined in the credit agreement. The 
credit agreement also limits the Company's ability to pay dividends and incur 
additional indebtedness. 
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    In May 2001, the Company completed the private placement of zero coupon 
senior convertible notes in which it realized net proceeds of approximately 
$221,000. Approximately $101,000 of the net proceeds were used to repay debt 
under the Company's senior revolving credit facility, and the balance was used 
for other general corporate purposes. In this private placement, the Company 
sold a total of $251,000 principal amount at maturity of zero coupon senior 
convertible notes due 2021, with each note issued at 90.50% of such principal 
amount and accreting at a rate of 0.50% per annum. Each security is convertible 
into 11.62 shares of the Company's Common Stock upon the occurrence of any of 
the following events: (i) if for certain six calendar-month periods, the closing 
sale prices of the Company's Common Stock are more than a specified price 
(initially $93.53 and increasing incrementally each six calendar-month period 
for the next 20 years to $94.62 on April 1, 2021); (ii) if the credit rating 
assigned to the securities is below a specified level; (iii) if the Company 
calls the securities for redemption; or (iv) if the Company takes certain 
corporate actions. The Company has the option to redeem the convertible notes 
for cash on or after May 7, 2006, and the holders may require the Company to 
repurchase the securities at their accreted value on May 7 of 2002, 2004, 2006, 
2011 and 2016. The purchase price for such repurchases may be in cash or shares 
of Common Stock. The Company currently intends to repurchase the securities with 
cash. 
 
    In December 2001, the Company completed a public offering of mandatory 
convertible debt securities (the "FELINE PRIDES"), in which the Company realized 



net proceeds of approximately $194,000. In January 2002, the sale of an 
over-allotment of these securities increased the Company's total net proceeds to 
$223,000. Approximately $183,000 of the net proceeds were used to repay debt 
under the Company's senior revolving credit facility, and the balance was used 
for other general corporate purposes. Each FELINE PRIDE initially consists of a 
unit referred to as an Income PRIDE, including (i) a senior note due 
November 17, 2006 with a principal amount of $25 per note, on which the Company 
will pay interest quarterly at the initial annual rate of 6%, and (ii) a forward 
purchase contract pursuant to which the holder has agreed to purchase, for $25 
per share, shares of Common Stock on November 17, 2004, with such number of 
shares to be determined based upon the average trading price of Common Stock for 
a period preceding that date. 
 
    Each of the senior notes is pledged to the Company to collateralize the 
holder's obligations under the forward purchase contracts. A holder of an Income 
PRIDE can obtain the release of the pledged senior notes by substituting certain 
zero coupon treasury securities as security for performance under the forward 
purchase contract. The resulting unit consisting of the zero coupon treasury 
security and the forward purchase contract would be a Growth PRIDE, and the 
senior notes would be a separate security. In August 2004, the senior notes will 
be remarketed, and the interest rate will be reset, such that the total proceeds 
will be $230,000. The holders will use the proceeds of the remarketing to fund 
their obligations to purchase shares of Common Stock under the forward purchase 
contract. The number of shares of Common Stock to be issued will be determined 
by the price of Common Stock at that time, subject to the total proceeds from 
the remarketing equaling $230,000. 
 
    In connection with the purchase of additional Affiliate equity interests in 
2001, the Company has issued $17,157 of notes to Affiliate partners. Of this 
amount, $1,838 is due in 2002 and is included in accounts payable and accrued 
liabilities. The balance of these notes, which is included in other long-term 
liabilities, bears interest at a weighted average interest rate of 5.9% and has 
maturities that range from 2003 to 2006. 
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    During February 2001, the Company became a party, with two major commercial 
banks as counterparties, to $50,000 notional amount of swap contracts that are 
linked to the three-month LIBOR. Under these swaps, the Company has agreed to 
exchange the difference between fixed-rate and floating rate interest amounts 
calculated by reference to the $50,000 notional amount. These contracts cap 
interest rates on the notional amounts at rates ranging between 4.95% and 5.14%. 
 
7. INCOME TAXES 
 
    A summary of the provision for income taxes is as follows: 
 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, ----------------------
-------- 1999 2000 2001 -------- -------- ----

---- Federal:
Current........................................

$35,658 $27,854 $24,144
Deferred.......................................

12,762 5,606 5,016 State:
Current........................................

6,125 4,537 3,450
Deferred.......................................

2,174 955 715 ------- ------- -------
Provision for income

taxes....................... $56,719 $38,952
$33,325 ======= ======= =======

 
 
    The effective income tax rate differs from the amount computed on income 
before income taxes by applying the U.S. federal income tax rate because of the 
effect of the following items: 
 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, -------------------
------------------- 1999 2000 2001 --------

-------- -------- Tax at U.S. federal
income tax rate................... 35% 35%

35% Nondeductible
expenses................................ 3

2 2 State income taxes, net of federal
benefit............ 7 4 3 Valuation



allowance...................................
(1) -- -- -- -- -- 44% 41% 40% == == ==

 
 
    The components of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows: 
 
DECEMBER 31, ------------------- 2000 2001 -------- -----
--- Deferred assets (liabilities): State net operating
loss carryforwards.................... $ 1,281 $ 2,345

Intangible
amortization................................... (35,089)

(43,067) Deferred
compensation..................................... 1,934

1,716
Accruals..................................................
1,248 2,721 -------- -------- (30,626) (36,285) --------

-------- Valuation
allowance.........................................

(1,281) (1,796) -------- -------- Net deferred income
taxes................................... $(31,907)

$(38,081) ======== ========
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    At December 31, 2001, the Company had state net operating loss carryforwards 
of $49,962, which expire over a period of 15 years beginning in the year 2002. 
The realization of these carryforwards is dependent on generating sufficient 
taxable income prior to their expiration. The valuation allowance at 
December 31, 2000 and 2001 is related to the uncertainty of the realization of 
these loss carryforwards. 
 
8. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
    On January 1, 2001, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standard 
No. 133 (FAS 133), "Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging 
Activities," as amended by Financial Accounting Standard No. 138, "Accounting 
For Certain Derivative Instruments and Certain Hedging Activities." FAS 133 
requires that all derivatives be recorded on the balance sheet at fair value and 
establishes criteria for designation and effectiveness of hedging relationships. 
The cumulative effect of adopting FAS 133 was not material to the Company's 
consolidated financial statements. 
 
    The Company is exposed to interest rate risk inherent in its variable rate 
debt liabilities. The Company's risk management strategy uses financial 
instruments, specifically interest rate swap contracts, to hedge certain 
interest rate exposures. In entering into these contracts, AMG intends to offset 
cash flow gains and losses that occur on its existing debt liabilities with cash 
flow losses and gains on the contracts hedging these liabilities. The Company 
agrees with a counterparty (typically a major commercial bank) to exchange the 
difference between fixed-rate and floating-rate interest amounts calculated by 
reference to an agreed notional principal amount. 
 
    The Company records all derivatives on the balance sheet at fair value. As 
the Company's hedges are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges, the 
effective portion of the unrealized gain or loss on the derivative instrument is 
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive income as a separate component of 
stockholders' equity and reclassified into earnings upon the periodic settlement 
of variable rate liabilities. For interest rate swaps, hedge effectiveness is 
measured by comparing the present value of the cumulative change in the expected 
future variable cash flows of the hedged contract with the present value of the 
cumulative change in the expected future variable cash flows of the hedged item, 
both of which are based on LIBOR rates. To the extent that the critical terms of 
the hedged item and the derivative are not identical, hedge ineffectiveness is 
reported in earnings as interest expense. Hedge ineffectiveness was not material 
in 2001. 
 
    At December 31, 2001, the net fair value of the Company's interest rate swap 
liability attributable to $50,000 notional amount of interest rate swap 
contracts was $1,383, which was recorded on the consolidated balance sheet in 
accounts payable and accrued liabilities. AMG estimates the fair values of 
derivatives based on quoted market prices. In December 2001, the Company repaid 
$25,000 of its outstanding variable rate debt, which was designated as a hedged 
item for the Company's open hedge contracts. As a result, $25,000 notional 
amount of the Company's interest rate swap contracts were deemed not to be 
hedging instruments. The Company reclassified $425, net of taxes, from 



accumulated other comprehensive income to earnings. In February 2002, the 
Company closed $25,000 notional amount of its interest rate swap contracts and 
entered into a new $25,000 notional amount interest rate swap contract with a 
major commercial bank as counterparty to exchange the difference between fixed 
rate and floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the notional 
amount. 
 
    At December 31, 2001, the Company had recorded approximately $552 of net 
unrealized losses on derivative instruments, net of taxes, in accumulated other 
comprehensive income. AMG expects that approximately 100% of these losses will 
be reclassified to earnings within one year. 
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9. COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 
 
    The Company's comprehensive income includes net income, changes in 
unrealized foreign currency gains and losses and changes in unrealized gains and 
losses on derivative instruments, which also include the cumulative effect of 
adopting FAS 133. Comprehensive income, net of taxes, was as follows: 
 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, -------------------------
-------- 1999 2000 2001 --------- --------- --------- Net
income..................................................

$72,188 $56,656 $49,989 Change in unrealized foreign
currency gains (losses)........ (71) (287) 48 Change in
net unrealized loss on derivative instruments..... -- --
(830) Reclassification of unrealized loss on derivative

instruments to net
income................................. -- -- 425

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle--FAS
133 transition

adjustment..................................... -- --
(1,321) Reclassification of FAS 133 transition adjustment

to net
income....................................................

-- -- 1,174 ------- ------- ------- Comprehensive
income........................................ $72,117

$56,369 $49,485 ======= ======= =======
 
 
    The components of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of taxes, were 
as follows: 
 
DECEMBER 31, -----------------
-- 2000 2001 -------- --------
Foreign currency translation

adjustment.....................
$(342) $(294) Unrealized loss

on derivative
instruments...................

-- (552) ------ ------
Accumulated other

comprehensive income
(loss)............... $(342)

$(846) ====== ======
 
 
10. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES 
 
    The Company and its Affiliates are subject to claims, legal proceedings and 
other contingencies in the ordinary course of their business activities. Each of 
these matters is subject to various uncertainties, and it is possible that some 
of these matters may be resolved unfavorably to the Company or its Affiliates. 
The Company and its Affiliates establish accruals for matters that are probable 
and can be reasonably estimated. Management believes that any liability in 
excess of these accruals upon the ultimate resolution of these matters will not 
have a material adverse effect on the consolidated financial condition or 
results of operations of the Company. 
 
11. ACQUISITIONS 
 
    On October 31, 2001, the Company acquired 51% of Friess. The results of 
Friess' operations have been included in the consolidated financial statements 
since that date. Friess is an investment adviser to the Brandywine family of 
mutual funds and institutional accounts and is based in Delaware, Wyoming and 
Arizona. 
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    A summary of the fair values of the net assets acquired in this acquisition 
is as follows: 
 
 
                                                            
Current assets, net.........................................  $  3,239 
Fixed assets................................................       433 
Acquired client relationships...............................   110,475 
Goodwill....................................................   130,638 
                                                              -------- 
Total purchase price, including acquisition costs...........  $244,785 
                                                              ======== 
 
 
    The fair value of amortizable acquired client relationships of $13,221 will 
be amortized over 15 years, and the remaining acquired client relationships that 
are attributable to mutual fund management contracts will not be amortized. All 
of these intangible assets are deductible for tax purposes. 
 
    Also in 2001, the Company made the following investments, for a total cost 
of $124,211, which was paid in cash, notes payable issued, and the Company's 
Common Stock: 
 
    - a 60% voting interest in Welch & Forbes, a Boston-based investment adviser 
      to personal trusts, high net worth families and charitable foundations; 
 
    - through The Renaissance Group LLC, a 60% interest in Bowling Portfolio 
      Management, a Cincinnati-based investment adviser to institutional and 
      high net worth clients; 
 
    - a minority interest in Dublin Fund Distributors, N.V., a Paris-based 
      sponsor of an Irish-registered and listed umbrella trust of hedge funds; 
      and 
 
    - several additional purchases of management equity in existing Affiliates. 
 
    Goodwill recognized in these transactions amounted to $96,731, all of which 
is deductible for tax purposes. 
 
    In January 2000, the Company acquired an equity interest in Frontier Capital 
Management Company, LLC. In January 1999, the Company acquired an equity 
interest in Rorer Asset Management, LLC and substantially all of the equity 
interests in Managers. The Company financed these investments with borrowings 
under its credit facility. In 2000, the cost of the Company's investments (net 
of cash acquired) was $104,438, which was allocated $6,439 to tangible equity 
and $97,999 to intangible assets. In 1999, the cost of the Company's investments 
(net of cash acquired) was $103,500, which was allocated $340 to tangible equity 
and $103,160 to intangible assets. 
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    Unaudited pro forma data for the years ended December 31, 2000 and 2001 are 
set forth below, giving consideration to the acquisitions occurring in the 
respective two-year period as if such transactions occurred as of the beginning 
of 2000, assuming revenue sharing arrangements had been in effect for the entire 
period and after making certain other pro forma adjustments. 
 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, ----------------------- 2000

2001 ---------- ----------
Revenue..............................................

$581,287 $490,267 Net
income...........................................

74,433 61,379 Earnings per share--
basic............................ $ 3.34 $ 2.77

Earnings per share--
diluted.......................... 3.27 2.70

 
 



    In conjunction with certain acquisitions, the Company has entered into 
agreements and is contingently liable, upon achievement of specified financial 
targets, to make additional purchase payments of up to $17,700 plus interest, as 
applicable. These contingent payments, if required, will be settled for cash 
with most coming due beginning April 1, 2002 and will be accounted for as an 
adjustment to the purchase price of the Affiliate. 
 
    As part of all of the Company's operating agreements (except that of 
Paradigm Asset Management Company, L.L.C.), Affiliate managers have rights that 
require AMG to purchase their retained equity interests at certain intervals. 
The Company is also obligated to purchase all remaining interests held by an 
Affiliate manager (each, a "Purchase," and collectively, the "Purchases") upon 
his or her death, disability or termination of employment. Purchases are 
generally calculated based on a multiple of the Affiliate's Owners Allocation, 
which is intended to represent fair value. In addition, to ensure the 
availability of continued ownership participation for future key employees, the 
Company can purchase certain equity interests retained by Affiliate managers. At 
December 31, 2001, the maximum amount of the Company's obligations under these 
arrangements equaled approximately $660,000. Assuming the closing of all such 
transactions, AMG would own the prospective Owners' Allocation of all interests 
owned by Affiliate managers so purchased, currently estimated to represent 
approximately $86,000 on an annualized basis. 
 
12. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 
 
    The following table reflects the components of intangible assets as of 
December 31, 2001: 
 
GROSS CARRYING ACCUMULATED AMOUNT AMORTIZATION -
------------- ------------ Amortized intangible

assets: Acquired client
relationships.................... $209,279
$35,193 Non-amortized intangible assets:
Acquired client relationships--mutual fund

management contracts...........................
156,399 10,840

Goodwill.........................................
723,424 68,113

 
 
    In accordance with FAS 142, goodwill will no longer be amortized beginning 
January 1, 2002. In addition, acquired client relationships determined to have 
indefinite lives will no longer be amortized. The Company has not yet completed 
its impairment testing of goodwill as of January 1, 2002. 
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12. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (CONTINUED) 
    Amortization expense was $26,409 and $28,432 for the years ended 
December 31, 2000 and 2001, respectively. Estimated amortization expense for 
each of the five succeeding fiscal years is as follows: 
 

ESTIMATED AMORTIZATION FISCAL YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,
EXPENSE - ------------------------------ ------------------

----
2002........................................................

$12,300
2003........................................................

12,300
2004........................................................

11,100
2005........................................................

10,900
2006........................................................

10,900
 
 
13. STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 
 
    PREFERRED STOCK 
 
    The Company is authorized to issue up to 5,000,000 shares of Preferred Stock 
in classes or series and to fix the designations, powers, preferences and the 
relative, participating, optional or other special rights of the shares of each 
series and any qualifications, limitations and restrictions thereon as set forth 
in the Certificate. Any such Preferred Stock issued by the Company may rank 
prior to the Common Stock as to dividend rights, liquidation preference or both, 



may have full or limited voting rights and may be convertible into shares of 
Common Stock. 
 
    COMMON STOCK 
 
    On March 3, 1999, the Company completed a public offering of 5,529,954 
shares of Common Stock, of which 4,000,000 shares were sold by the Company and 
1,529,954 shares were sold by selling stockholders. AMG used the net proceeds 
from the offering to reduce indebtedness and did not receive any proceeds from 
the sale of Common Stock by the selling stockholders. 
 
    On April 20, 2000, the Company announced that its Board of Directors had 
authorized a share repurchase program pursuant to which AMG can repurchase up to 
5% of its issued and outstanding shares of Common Stock in open market 
transactions, with the timing of purchases and the amount of stock purchased 
determined at the discretion of AMG's management. The Board of Directors 
authorized a similar repurchase program in 1999. In the year ended December 31, 
2001, AMG had repurchased 157,100 shares of Common Stock at an average price of 
$57.97. In the year ended December 31, 2000, the Company repurchased 1,261,800 
shares of Common Stock at an average price of $38.68. 
 
    STOCK INCENTIVE PLAN 
 
    The Company has established the 1997 Stock Option and Incentive Plan (as 
amended), under which it is authorized to grant stock options and grant or sell 
a limited number of shares of restricted stock to employees and directors. In 
2001, stockholders approved an amendment to increase to 4,550,000 the shares 
available to be issued under this plan. 
 
    The plan is administered by a committee of the Board of Directors. The 
exercise price of stock options is the fair market value of the Common Stock on 
the date of grant. The stock options generally vest over periods ranging up to 
four years and expire seven to ten years after the grant date. 
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    The following table summarizes the transactions of the Company's stock 
option plans for the three-year period ended December 31, 2001. 
 

WEIGHTED AVERAGE NUMBER OF SHARES
EXERCISE PRICE ---------------- -----

--------- Unexercised options
outstanding-- December 31,

1998.............................
1,171,750 $ 26.34 Activity in 1999

Options
granted...............................

845,000 28.86 Options
exercised.............................

(938) 21.65 Options
forfeited.............................

(562) 14.25 --------- ---------
Unexercised options outstanding--

December 31,
1999.............................
2,015,250 $ 27.40 Activity in 2000

Options
granted...............................

869,000 49.86 Options
exercised.............................

(324,225) 21.46 Options
forfeited.............................
(100,875) 29.80 --------- ---------
Unexercised options outstanding--

December 31,
2000.............................
2,459,150 $ 36.02 Activity in 2001

Options
granted...............................

1,190,750 63.68 Options
exercised.............................

(213,617) 28.17 Options
forfeited.............................
(24,875) 38.28 --------- ---------
Unexercised options outstanding--

December 31,



2001.............................
3,411,408 $ 46.15 Exercisable options

December 31,
1999.............................

887,750 $ 24.62 December 31,
2000.............................

1,011,460 30.84 December 31,
2001.............................

1,475,870 36.69
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    The following table summarizes information about the Company's stock options 
at December 31, 2001: 
 

OPTIONS
OUTSTANDING

OPTIONS
EXERCISABLE
------------
------------
------------
------------
- ----------
------------
-----------
WEIGHTED

AVG. NUMBER
REMAINING
WEIGHTED
AVG.

WEIGHTED
AVG. RANGE
OF EXERCISE
OUTSTANDING

AS OF
CONTRACTUAL
EXERCISE

EXERCISABLE
AS OF

EXERCISE
PRICES
12/31/01

LIFE (YEARS)
PRICE

12/31/01
PRICE - ----
------------
- ----------
------- ----
--------- --
-----------
------------
----- ------
------- $10-
20...........
2,300 6.8

$14.25 2,300
$14.25 20-

30...........
1,101,358
7.2 27.13
713,233
26.26 30-

40...........
301,750 6.5

34.71
279,560
34.67 40-

50...........
415,500 9.0

47.88
121,374
47.89 50-

60...........



996,750 7.5
56.07
352,373
55.21 60-

70...........
37,500 9.1
62.00 7,030
62.00 70-

80...........
556,250 7.0
70.03 -- --
--------- --
- ------ ---
------ -----
- 3,411,408
7.4 $46.15
1,475,870
$36.69

=========
=== ======
=========
======

 
 
    SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE FOR EQUITY-BASED COMPENSATION 
 
    The Company continues to apply APB 25 and related interpretations in 
accounting for equity-based compensation arrangements. FAS 123 defines a fair 
value method of accounting for the above arrangements whose impact requires 
disclosure. Under the fair value method, compensation cost is measured at the 
grant date based on the fair value of the award and is recognized over the 
expected service period. 
 
    Had compensation costs for the Company's equity-based compensation 
arrangements been determined based on the fair value at grant date for awards 
consistent with the requirements of FAS 123, the Company's net income and net 
income per share would have been as follows: 
 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, ----------------------
-------- 1999 2000 2001 -------- -------- ----

---- Net income--as
reported.......................... $72,188
$56,656 $49,989 Net income--FAS 123 pro

forma.................... 68,463 48,962 41,192
Net income per share--basic--as

reported......... 3.25 2.54 2.26 Net income
per share--basic--FAS 123 pro forma... 3.09
2.19 1.85 Net income per share--diluted--as
reported....... 3.18 2.49 2.20 Net income per

share--diluted--FAS 123 pro
forma..........................................

3.02 2.15 1.81
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    The weighted average fair value of options granted in the years ended 
December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001 were estimated at $15.62, $26.11 and $15.69 per 
option, respectively, using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The 
following weighted average assumptions were used for the option valuations. 
 
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, ------------------------
------ 1999 2000 2001 -------- -------- --------

Dividend
yield............................................

0.0% 0.0% 0.0% Expected
volatility.......................................

50.8% 53.3% 30.0% Risk-free interest
rate................................... 5.5%

5.7% 4.4% Expected life of options (in
years)....................... 8.4 7.2 5.0

 
 
14. EARNINGS PER SHARE 
 
    The calculation for basic earnings per share is based on the weighted 



average of common shares outstanding during the period. The following is a 
reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted 
earnings per share computations. Unlike all other dollar amounts in these 
footnotes, net income in this table is not presented in thousands. 
 
1999 2000 2001 ----------- ----------- -----------

Numerator: Net
income..........................................
$72,188,000 $56,656,000 $49,989,000 ===========

=========== =========== Denominator: Average shares
outstanding--basic................... 22,180,112
22,307,476 22,136,410 Incremental shares for

convertible preferred
stock.............................................

374,174 -- -- Incremental shares for stock
options................ 138,730 441,119 595,719 ---

-------- ----------- ----------- Average shares
outstanding--diluted................. 22,693,016
22,748,595 22,732,129 =========== ===========

=========== Earnings per share:
Basic...............................................

$ 3.25 $ 2.54 $ 2.26
Diluted.............................................

$ 3.18 $ 2.49 $ 2.20
 
 
    On May 25, 2000, the Company's shareholders approved an increase in the 
number of authorized shares of voting Common Stock from 40,000,000 to 
80,000,000. 
 
    For the years ended December 31, 1999, 2000 and 2001, the Company 
repurchased a total of 346,900, 1,261,800 and 157,100 shares of Common Stock 
under various stock repurchase programs. 
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15. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
    The Company is exposed to market risks brought on by changes in interest 
rates. Derivative financial instruments are used by the Company to reduce those 
risks, as explained in this Note. 
 
(A) NOTIONAL AMOUNTS AND CREDIT EXPOSURES OF DERIVATIVES 
 
    The notional amount of derivatives do not represent amounts that are 
exchanged by the parties, and thus are not a measure of the Company's exposure. 
The amounts exchanged are calculated on the basis of the notional or contract 
amounts, as well as on other terms of the interest rate swap derivatives, and 
the volatility of these rates and prices. 
 
    The Company would be exposed to credit-related losses in the event of 
nonperformance by the counter parties that issued the financial instruments. The 
Company does not expect that the counter parties to interest rate swaps will 
fail to meet their obligations, given their high credit ratings. The credit 
exposure of derivative contracts is represented by the positive fair value of 
contracts at the reporting date, reduced by the effects of master netting 
agreements. The Company generally does not give or receive collateral on 
interest rate swaps because of its own credit rating and that of its 
counterparties. 
 
(B) INTEREST RATE RISK MANAGEMENT 
 
    The Company enters into interest rate swaps to reduce exposure to interest 
rate risk connected to existing liabilities. The Company does not hold or issue 
derivative financial instruments for trading purposes. Interest rate swaps allow 
the Company to achieve a level of variable-rate and fixed-rate debt that is 
acceptable to management, and to cap interest rate exposure. The Company agrees 
with another party to exchange the difference between fixed-rate and floating 
rate interest amounts calculated by reference to an agreed notional principal 
amount. 
 
(C) FAIR VALUE 
 
    FAS 107, "Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments," requires 
the Company to disclose the estimated fair values for certain of its financial 
instruments. Financial instruments include items such as loans, interest rate 
contracts, notes payable and other items as defined in FAS 107. 



 
    Fair value of a financial instrument is the amount at which the instrument 
could be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than 
in a forced or liquidation sale. 
 
    Quoted market prices are used when available, otherwise, management 
estimates fair value based on prices of financial instruments with similar 
characteristics or using valuation techniques such as discounted cash flow 
models. Valuation techniques involve uncertainties and require assumptions and 
judgments regarding prepayments, credit risk and discount rates. Changes in 
these assumptions will result in different valuation estimates. The fair value 
presented would not necessarily be realized in an immediate sale; nor are there 
plans to settle liabilities prior to contractual maturity. Additionally, 
FAS 107 allows companies to use a wide range of valuation techniques; therefore, 
it may be difficult to compare the Company's fair value information to other 
companies' fair value information. 
 
    The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents approximates fair value 
because of the short-term nature of these instruments. The carrying value of 
notes receivable approximate fair value because interest rates and other terms 
are at market rates. The carrying value of notes payable approximates fair value 
principally because of the short-term nature of the note. The carrying value of 
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senior bank debt approximates fair value because the debt is a revolving credit 
facility with variable interest based on short-term LIBOR rates. The fair market 
value of the zero coupon convertible debt at December 31, 2001 was $246,608. The 
carrying value of the mandatory convertible debt approximates fair value. The 
fair values of interest rate hedging agreements are quoted market prices based 
on the estimated amount necessary to terminate the agreements. The fair market 
values of interest rate hedging agreements were ($1,105) and ($1,383) at 
December 31, 2000 and 2001, respectively. 
 
16. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED) 
 
    The following is a summary of the unaudited quarterly results of operations 
of the Company for 2000 and 2001. 
 

2000 -----------------------------------------
FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER

QUARTER -------- -------- -------- --------
Revenue.............................................

$114,798 $110,895 $118,205 $114,810 Operating
income.................................... 43,935

41,980 43,841 44,679 Income before income
taxes.......................... 23,415 23,180

24,369 24,644 Net
income..........................................
13,815 13,677 14,378 14,786 Earnings per share--
diluted......................... $ 0.60 $ 0.61 $

0.64 $ 0.65

2001 -----------------------------------------
FIRST SECOND THIRD FOURTH QUARTER QUARTER QUARTER

QUARTER -------- -------- -------- --------
Revenue.............................................

$100,475 $100,663 $ 96,584 $110,488 Operating
income.................................... 37,312

37,890 35,674 43,411 Income before income
taxes.......................... 19,883 21,845

20,585 21,001 Net
income..........................................
11,930 13,107 12,352 12,600 Earnings per share--
diluted......................... $ 0.53 $ 0.58 $

0.54 $ 0.55
 
 
    During each quarter of 2001, the Company experienced a decrease in revenue, 
operating income and income before income taxes from the same period in 2000 
primarily as a result of declines in the value of assets under management, which 
resulted principally from a broad decline in the equity markets. These declines 
were partially offset by revenue generated by positive net client cash flows in 
directly managed assets. 
 



17. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 
    During 1998, the Company initiated an employee loan program. Loans to 
employees accrue interest at the lower of 6.25% or the Applicable Federal Rate, 
have a stated 30-year maturity date and are collateralized by real property. 
Outstanding balances are payable in full generally one year after termination of 
employment with the Company. At December 31, 2000 and 2001, loans outstanding, 
including accrued interest, totaled $5,939 and $6,220, respectively. 
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18. SEGMENT INFORMATION 
 
    Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 131 (FAS 131), "Disclosures 
about Segments of an Enterprise and Related Information," establishes disclosure 
requirements relating to operating segments in annual and interim financial 
statements. Management has assessed the requirements of FAS 131 and determined 
that the Company operates in three business segments representing the Company's 
three principal distribution channels: High Net Worth, Mutual Fund and 
Institutional. 
 
    Revenue in the High Net Worth distribution channel is earned from 
relationships with wealthy individuals, family trusts and managed account 
("wrap") programs. Revenue in the Mutual Fund distribution channel is earned 
from advisory and sub-advisory relationships with mutual funds. Revenue in the 
Institutional distribution channel is earned from relationships with foundations 
and endowments, defined benefit and defined contribution plans and Taft-Hartley 
plans. Expenses reported by Affiliates in segment operating results are 
generally limited to the Operating Allocation attributable to the revenue earned 
by the Affiliate in the particular distribution channel. All other operating 
expenses, except intangible amortization, have been allocated to segments based 
on the proportion of aggregate EBITDA Contribution reported by Affiliates in 
each segment. 
 
1999 ---------------------------------------
---------------- HIGH NET WORTH MUTUAL FUND
INSTITUTIONAL TOTAL -------------- ---------

-- ------------- --------
Revenue......................................

$177,875 $ 76,425 $264,426 $518,726
Operating expenses: Depreciation and
amortization.............. 7,268 6,592

12,270 26,130 Other operating
expenses................... 95,601 36,069

148,267 279,937 -------- -------- -------- -
------- 102,869 42,661 160,537 306,067 -----
--- -------- -------- -------- Operating

income............................. 75,006
33,764 103,889 212,659 Non-operating

(income) and expenses: Investment and other
income................ (12,231) (296)

(1,710) (14,237) Interest
expense........................... 4,532

2,000 5,232 11,764 -------- -------- -------
- -------- (7,699) 1,704 3,522 (2,473) -----
--- -------- -------- -------- Income before

minority interest and income
taxes......................................

82,705 32,060 100,367 215,132 Minority
interest............................

(31,206) (11,613) (43,406) (86,225) --------
-------- -------- -------- Income before
income taxes................... 51,499

20,447 56,961 128,907 Income
taxes.................................

22,660 8,996 25,063 56,719 -------- --------
-------- -------- Net

income................................... $
28,839 $ 11,451 $ 31,898 $ 72,188 ========

======== ======== ======== Total
assets.................................

$269,777 $200,295 $439,001 $909,073 ========
======== ======== ========

Goodwill.....................................
$ 95,988 $127,384 $162,010 $385,382 ========

======== ======== ========
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2000 ---------------------------------------
---------------- HIGH NET WORTH MUTUAL FUND
INSTITUTIONAL TOTAL -------------- ---------

-- ------------- --------
Revenue......................................

$138,930 $ 97,410 $222,368 $458,708
Operating expenses: Depreciation and
amortization.............. 8,094 7,551

15,375 31,020 Other operating
expenses................... 74,873 53,548

124,832 253,253 -------- -------- -------- -
------- 82,967 61,099 140,207 284,273 ------

-- -------- -------- -------- Operating
income............................. 55,963
36,311 82,161 174,435 Non-operating (income)

and expenses: Investment and other
income................ 1,226 (606) (2,884)

(2,264) Interest
expense........................... 5,669

3,438 6,643 15,750 -------- -------- -------
- -------- 6,895 2,832 3,759 13,486 --------
-------- -------- -------- Income before

minority interest and income
taxes......................................

49,068 33,479 78,402 160,949 Minority
interest............................

(16,293) (12,086) (36,962) (65,341) --------
-------- -------- -------- Income before
income taxes................... 32,775

21,393 41,440 95,608 Income
taxes.................................

13,354 8,716 16,882 38,952 -------- --------
-------- -------- Net

income................................... $
19,421 $ 12,677 $ 24,558 $ 56,656 ========

======== ======== ======== Total
assets.................................

$195,880 $194,163 $403,687 $793,730 ========
======== ======== ========

Goodwill.....................................
$103,116 $124,217 $216,783 $444,116 ========

======== ======== ========

2001 --------------------------------------
------------------- HIGH NET WORTH MUTUAL
FUND INSTITUTIONAL TOTAL -------------- ---

-------- ------------- ----------
Revenue.....................................

$133,780 $113,621 $160,809 $ 408,210
Operating expenses: Depreciation and
amortization............. 8,861 8,569

16,671 34,101 Other operating
expenses.................. 71,475 60,812

87,535 219,822 -------- -------- -------- -
--------- 80,336 69,381 104,206 253,923 ---

----- -------- -------- ----------
Operating

income............................ 53,444
44,240 56,603 154,287 Non-operating

(income) and expenses: Investment and other
income............... (977) (1,545) (2,583)

(5,105) Interest
expense.......................... 5,346

4,120 5,262 14,728 -------- -------- ------
-- ---------- 4,369 2,575 2,679 9,623 -----
--- -------- -------- ---------- Income
before minority interest and income

taxes.....................................
49,075 41,665 53,924 144,664 Minority
interest...........................



(18,116) (15,583) (27,651) (61,350) -------
- -------- -------- ---------- Income
before income taxes..................
30,959 26,082 26,273 83,314 Income

taxes................................
12,384 10,433 10,508 33,325 -------- ------

-- -------- ---------- Net
income.................................. $
18,575 $ 15,649 $ 15,765 $ 49,989 ========

======== ======== ========== Total
assets................................
$294,053 $381,882 $484,386 $1,160,321
======== ======== ======== ==========

Goodwill....................................
$169,429 $214,741 $271,141 $ 655,311
======== ======== ======== ==========
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                                  SCHEDULE II 
                       VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS 
 
ADDITIONS BALANCE CHARGED TO DEDUCTIONS

BEGINNING OF COSTS AND AND WRITE-
BALANCE END PERIOD EXPENSES OFFS OF

PERIOD -------------- ---------- -------
--- ----------- (IN THOUSANDS) Income
Tax Valuation Allowance Year Ending

December 31,
2001.....................................

$1,281 $515 $ -- $1,796
2000.....................................

1,173 108 -- 1,281
1999.....................................

1,404 -- (231) 1,173
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                      REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS ON 
                          FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE 
 
To the Board of Directors of 
Affiliated Managers Group, Inc.: 
 
    Our audits of the consolidated financial statements referred to in our 
report dated March 28, 2002 of Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. (which report and 
consolidated financial statements are included in this Annual Report on 
Form 10-K) also included an audit of the financial statement schedule listed in 
Item 14(a)(2) of this Form 10-K. In our opinion, this financial statement 
schedule presents fairly, in all material respects, the information set forth 
therein when read in conjunction with the related consolidated financial 
statements. 
 
                                          PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
 
Boston, Massachusetts 
March 28, 2002 
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND 
  FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE 
 
    None. 
 
                                    PART III 
 
    The information in Part III (Items 10, 11, 12 and 13) is incorporated by 
reference to the Company's definitive Proxy Statement, which will be filed not 
later than 120 days after the end of the Company's fiscal year. 
 
                                    PART IV 
 
ITEM 14. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULE AND REPORTS ON FORM 8-K 
 
(a) (1)  Financial Statements: See Item 8 
    (2)  Financial Statement Schedules: See Item 8 
    (3)  Exhibits 
 



 
     
  2.1  Purchase Agreement dated August 15, 1997 by and among the 
       Registrant, Tweedy, Browne Company L.P. and the partners of 
       Tweedy, Browne Company L.P. (excluding schedules and 
       exhibits, which the Registrant agrees to furnish 
       supplementally to the Commission upon request) (2) 
 
  2.2  Agreement and Plan of Reorganization dated August 15, 1997 
       by and among the Registrant, AMG Merger Sub, Inc., 
       GeoCapital Corporation, GeoCapital, LLC and the stockholders 
       of GeoCapital Corporation (excluding schedules and exhibits, 
       which the Registrant agrees to furnish supplementally to the 
       Commission upon request) (2) 
 
  2.3  Stock Purchase Agreement dated as of January 17, 1996 by and 
       among the Registrant, First Quadrant Holdings, Inc., Talegen 
       Holdings, Inc., certain employees of First Quadrant Corp. 
       and the other parties identified therein (excluding 
       schedules and exhibits, which the Registrant agrees to 
       furnish supplementally to the Commission upon request) (2) 
 
  2.4  Amendment to Stock Purchase Agreement by and among the 
       Registrant, First Quadrant Holdings, Inc., Talegen 
       Holdings, Inc., certain managers of First Quadrant Corp. and 
       the Management Corporations identified therein, effective as 
       of March 28, 1996 (2) 
 
  2.5  Partnership Interest Purchase Agreement dated as of June 6, 
       1995 by and among the Registrant, Mesirow Asset 
       Management, Inc., Mesirow Financial Holdings, Inc., Skyline 
       Asset Management, L.P., certain managers of Mesirow Asset 
       Management, Inc. and the Management Corporations identified 
       therein (excluding schedules and exhibits, which the 
       Registrant agrees to furnish supplementally to the 
       Commission upon request) (2) 
 
  2.6  Amendment, made by and among Mesirow Financial 
       Holdings, Inc. and the Registrant, to Partnership Interest 
       Purchase Agreement by and among the Registrant, Mesirow 
       Asset Management, Inc., Mesirow Financial Holdings, Inc., 
       Skyline Asset Management, L.P., certain managers of Mesirow 
       Asset Management, Inc. and the Management Corporations 
       identified therein, effective as of August 30, 1995 (2) 
 
  2.7  Agreement and Plan of Reorganization dated January 15, 1998 
       by and among the Registrant, Constitution Merger Sub, Inc., 
       Essex Investment Management Company, Inc. and certain of the 
       stockholders of Essex Investment Management Company, Inc. 
       (excluding schedules and exhibits, which the Registrant 
       agrees to furnish supplementally to the Commission upon 
       request) (3) 
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  2.8  Amendment to Agreement and Plan of Reorganization dated 
       March 19, 1998 by and among the Registrant, Constitution 
       Merger Sub, Inc., Essex Investment Management Company, Inc. 
       and certain of the stockholders of Essex Investment 
       Management Company, Inc. (excluding schedules and exhibits, 
       which the Registrant agrees to furnish supplementally to the 
       Commission upon request) (3) 
 
  2.9  Stock Purchase Agreement dated November 9, 1998 by and among 
       the Registrant, Edward C. Rorer & Co., Inc. and the 
       stockholders of Edward C. Rorer & Co., Inc. (excluding 
       schedules and exhibits, which the Registrant agrees to 
       furnish supplementally to the Commission upon request) (4) 
 
  3.1  Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation (2) 
 
  3.2  Amended and Restated By-laws (2) 
 
  3.3  Certificate of Designations, Preferences and Rights of a 
       Series of Stock (5) 
 
  4.1  Specimen certificate for shares of Common Stock of the 
       Registrant (2) 



 
  4.2  Credit Agreement dated as of December 22, 1997 by and among 
       Chase Manhattan Bank, Nations Bank N.A. and the other 
       lenders identified therein and the Registrant (excluding 
       schedules and exhibits, which the Registrant agrees to 
       furnish supplementally to the Commission upon request) (3) 
 
  4.3  Stock Purchase Agreement dated November 7, 1995 by and among 
       the Registrant, TA Associates, NationsBank, The Hartford, 
       and the additional parties listed on the signature pages 
       thereto (excluding schedules and exhibits, which the 
       Registrant agrees to furnish supplementally to the 
       Commission upon request) (2) 
 
  4.4  Preferred Stock and Warrant Purchase Agreement dated 
       August 15, 1997 between the Registrant and Chase Equity 
       Associates (excluding schedules and exhibits, which the 
       Registrant agrees to furnish supplementally to the 
       Commission upon request) (2) 
 
  4.5  Amendment No. 1 to Preferred Stock and Warrant Purchase 
       Agreement dated as of October 9, 1997 between the 
       Registrant and Chase Equity Associates (2) 
 
  4.6  Securities Purchase Agreement dated August 15, 1997 between 
       the Registrant and Chase Equity Associates (excluding 
       schedules and exhibits, which the Registrant agrees to 
       furnish supplementally to the Commission upon request) (2) 
 
  4.7  Securities Purchase Agreement Amendment No. 1 dated as of 
       October 9, 1997 between the Registrant and Chase Equity 
       Associates (2) 
 
  4.8  Liquid Yield Option Notes due May 7, 2021 (Zero 
       Coupon-Senior) Purchase Agreement, Dated as of May 1, 2001, 
       by and between the Registrant and Merrill Lynch & Co., 
       Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated (10) 
 
  4.9  Liquid Yield Option Notes due May 7, 2021 (Zero 
       Coupon-Senior) Indenture, Dated as of May 7, 2001, First 
       Union National Bank, Trustee (10) 
 
 4.10  Liquid Yield Option Notes due May 7, 2021 (Zero 
       Coupon-Senior) Registration Rights Agreement, Dated as of 
       May 7, 2001, by and between the Registrant and Merrill 
       Lynch & Co., Merrill Lynch, Pierce, Fenner & Smith 
       Incorporated (10) 
 
 4.11  Indenture, dated December 21, 2001, between the Registrant 
       and First Union National Bank, as Trustee (12) 
 
 4.12  First Supplemental Indenture, dated December 21, 2001, 
       between the Registrant and First Union National Bank, as 
       Trustee (12) 
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 4.13  Purchase Contract Agreement, dated December 21, 2001, 
       between the Registrant and First Union National Bank, as 
       Purchase Contract Agent (12) 
 
 4.14  Pledge Agreement, dated December 21, 2001, between the 
       Registrant and First Union National Bank, as Collateral 
       Agent, Custodial Agent, Purchase Contract Agent and 
       Securities Intermediary (12) 
 
 4.15  Remarketing Agreement, dated December 21, 2001, by and among 
       the Registrant, First Union National Bank, as Purchase 
       Contract Agent, and Merrill Lynch & Co., Merrill Lynch, 
       Pierce, Fenner & Smith Incorporated as Remarketing Agent and 
       Reset Agent (12) 
 
 4.16  Form of Income Prides Certificate (included as Exhibit A to 
       Exhibit 4.13) (12) 
 
 4.17  Form of Growth Prides Certificate (included as Exhibit B to 
       Exhibit 4.13) (12) 
 



 4.18  Form of 6% Senior Note (included as part of 
       Exhibit 4.12) (12) 
 
 10.1  Amended and Restated Stockholders' Agreement dated 
       October 9, 1997 by and among the Registrant and TA 
       Associates, NationsBank, The Hartford, Chase Capital and the 
       additional parties listed on the signature pages 
       thereto (2) 
 
 10.2  Tweedy, Browne Company LLC Limited Liability Company 
       Agreement dated October 9, 1997 by and among the Registrant 
       and the other members identified therein (excluding 
       schedules and exhibits, which the Registrant agrees to 
       furnish supplementally to the Commission upon request) (2) 
 
 10.3  GeoCapital, LLC Amended and Restated Limited Liability 
       Company Agreement dated September 30, 1997 by and among the 
       Registrant and the members identified therein (excluding 
       schedules and exhibits, which the Registrant agrees to 
       furnish supplementally to the Commission upon request) (2) 
 
 10.4  First Quadrant, L.P. Amended and Restated Limited 
       Partnership Agreement dated March 28, 1996 by and among the 
       Registrant and the partners identified therein (excluding 
       schedules and exhibits, which the Registrant agrees to 
       furnish supplementally to the Commission upon request) (2) 
 
 10.5  Amendment to First Quadrant, L.P. Amended and Restated 
       Limited Partnership Agreement by and among the Registrant 
       and the partners identified therein, effective as of 
       October 1, 1996 (2) 
 
 10.6  Second Amendment to First Quadrant, L.P. Amended and 
       Restated Limited Partnership Agreement by and among the 
       Registrant and the partners identified therein, effective as 
       of December 31, 1996 (2) 
 
 10.7  First Quadrant U.K., L.P. Limited Partnership Agreement 
       dated March 28, 1996 by and among the Registrant and the 
       partners identified therein (excluding schedules and 
       exhibits, which the Registrant agrees to furnish 
       supplementally to the Commission upon request) (2) 
 
 10.8  Skyline Asset Management, L.P. Amended and Restated Limited 
       Partnership Agreement dated August 31, 1995 by and among the 
       Registrant and the partners identified therein (excluding 
       schedules and exhibits, which the Registrant agrees to 
       furnish supplementally to the Commission upon request) (2) 
 
 10.9  Amendment to Skyline Asset Management, L.P. Amended and 
       Restated Limited Partnership Agreement by and among the 
       Registrant and the partners identified therein, effective as 
       of August 1, 1996 (2) 
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10.10  Second Amendment to Skyline Asset Management, L.P. Amended 
       and Restated Limited Partnership Agreement by and among the 
       Registrant and the partners identified therein, effective as 
       of December 31, 1996 (2) 
 
10.11  Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. Amended and Restated 1997 
       Stock Option and Incentive Plan (7) 
 
10.12  Affiliated Managers Group. Inc. 1995 Incentive Stock 
       Plan (2) 
 
10.13  Form of Tweedy, Browne Employment Agreement (2) 
 
10.14  Essex Investment Management Company, LLC Amended and 
       Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement dated 
       March 20, 1998 by and among the Registrant and the members 
       identified therein (excluding schedules and exhibits, which 
       the Registrant agrees to furnish supplementally to the 
       Commission upon request) (3) 
 
10.15  Form of Essex Employment Agreement (3) 
 



10.16  Rorer Asset Management, LLC Amended and Restated Limited 
       Liability Company Agreement dated January 6, 1999 by and 
       among the Registrant and the members identified therein 
       (excluded schedules and exhibits, which the Registrant 
       agrees to furnish supplementally to the Commission upon 
       request) (6) 
 
10.17  Form of Rorer Employment Agreement (6) 
 
10.18  Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. Defined Contribution 
       Plan (8) 
 
10.19  Purchase Agreement dated as of August 28, 2001 by and among 
       the Registrant, Friess Associates, Inc., Friess Associates 
       of Delaware, Inc., the Stockholders of Friess 
       Associates, Inc., the Stockholders of Friess Associates of 
       Delaware, Inc., NCCF Support, Inc. and The Community 
       Foundation of Jackson Hole (excluding schedules and 
       exhibits, which the Registrant agrees to furnish 
       supplementally to the Commission upon request) (11) 
 
10.20  Friess Management Owner Purchase Agreement dated as of 
       August 28, 2001 by and among the Registrant and the 
       management owner parties thereto (excluding schedules and 
       exhibits, which the Registrant agrees to furnish 
       supplementally to the Commission upon request) (11) 
 
10.21  Employment Agreement dated August 28, 2001 by and among FA 
       (WY) Acquisition Company, Inc., Friess Associates, LLC and 
       Foster S. Friess (11) 
 
10.22  Form of Employment Agreement dated August 28, 2001 by and 
       among FA (DE) Acquisition Company, LLC and Friess Associates 
       of Delaware, LLC, or FA (WY) Acquisition Company, Inc. and 
       Friess Associates, LLC, and each of Messrs. William F. 
       D'Alonzo, Jon S. Fenn and John P. Ragard, as 
       applicable (11) 
 
10.23  Form of Put Option Agreement dated August 28, 2001 with 
       respect to Messrs. William F. D'Alonzo, Jon S. Fenn, Foster 
       S. Friess and John P. Ragard (11) 
 
10.24  Form of Make-Whole Bonus Agreement dated August 28, 2001 
       with respect to Messrs. William F. D'Alonzo, Jon S. Fenn, 
       Foster S. Friess and John P. Ragard (11) 
 
10.25  Friess Associates, LLC Amended and Restated Limited 
       Liability Company Agreement dated as of August 28, 2001 by 
       and among the persons identified therein (excluding 
       schedules and exhibits, which the Registrant agrees to 
       furnish supplementally to the Commission upon request) (11) 
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10.26  Friess Associates of Delaware, LLC Amended and Restated 
       Limited Liability Company Agreement dated as of August 28, 
       2001 by and among the persons identified therein (excluding 
       schedules and exhibits, which the Registrant agrees to 
       furnish supplementally to the Commission upon request) (11) 
 
10.27  Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. Long-Term Executive 
       Incentive Plan (9) 
 
 21.1  Schedule of Subsidiaries (1) 
 
 23.2  Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP (1) 
 
 
- ------------------------ 
 
(1) Filed herewith 
 
(2) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Registration Statement on 
    Form S-1 (No. 333-34679), filed August 29, 1997 as amended 
 
(3) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
    the fiscal year ended December 31, 1997 
 



(4) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q 
    for the three months ended September 30, 1998 
 
(5) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Registration Statement on 
    Form S-3 (No. 333-71561), filed February 1, 1999, as amended 
 
(6) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K 
    filed January 21, 1999 
 
(7) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q 
    for the three months ended June 30, 1999 
 
(8) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Annual Report on Form 10-K for 
    the fiscal year ended December 31, 1999 
 
(9) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Proxy Statement on 
    Schedule 14A filed April 19, 2000 
 
(10) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Current Quarterly Report on 
    Form 10-Q filed May 15, 2001 
 
(11) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K 
    filed November 15, 2001 
 
(12) Incorporated by reference to the Registrant's Current Report on Form 8-K 
    filed December 31, 2001 
 
(b) Reports on Form 8-K 
 
    The Registrant filed the following Reports on Form 8-K during the quarter 
ended 
December 31, 2001. 
 
    1.  Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 15, 2001, announcing that the 
       Company had acquired a majority equity interest in the business of Friess 
       Associates, LLC and Friess Associates of Delaware, LLC. 
 
    2.  Current Report on Form 8-K filed November 15, 2001, containing the press 
       release disclosing the Company's operating results for the quarter ended 
       September 30, 2001. 
 
    3.  Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 31, 2001, announcing the 
       closing of the public offering of FELINE PRIDES by the Company. 
 
                                       64 
 
                                   SIGNATURES 
 
    Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities 
Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on 
its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. 
 
 
                                                       
                                                       AFFILIATED MANAGERS GROUP, INC. 
                                                       (Registrant) 
 
                                                       By              /s/ WILLIAM J. NUTT 
                                                            ----------------------------------------- 
                                                                         William J. Nutt 
                                                             Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of 
Date: March 28, 2002                                                  the Board of Directors 
 
 
    Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this 
report has been signed below by the following persons on behalf of the 
registrant in the capacities and on the dates indicated. 
 
 
                                                                                  
                                                       Chief Executive Officer and 
                 /s/ WILLIAM J. NUTT                     Chairman of the Board of 
     -------------------------------------------         Directors (Principal          March 28, 2002 
                  (William J. Nutt)                      Executive Officer) 
 
                 /s/ SEAN M. HEALEY 
     -------------------------------------------       President, Chief Operating      March 28, 2002 
                  (Sean M. Healey)                       Officer, and Director 
 
                                                       Executive Vice President, 
                /s/ DARRELL W. CRATE                     Chief Financial Officer and 



     -------------------------------------------         Treasurer (Principal          March 28, 2002 
                 (Darrell W. Crate)                      Financial and Principal 
                                                         Accounting Officer) 
 
                /s/ RICHARD E. FLOOR 
     -------------------------------------------       Director                        March 28, 2002 
                 (Richard E. Floor) 
 
               /s/ STEPHEN J. LOCKWOOD 
     -------------------------------------------       Director                        March 28, 2002 
                (Stephen J. Lockwood) 
 
               /s/ HAROLD J. MEYERMAN 
     -------------------------------------------       Director                        March 28, 2002 
                (Harold J. Meyerman) 
 
                /s/ RITA M. RODRIGUEZ 
     -------------------------------------------       Director                        March 28, 2002 
                 (Rita M. Rodriguez) 
 
                 /s/ WILLIAM F. WELD 
     -------------------------------------------       Director                        March 28, 2002 
                  (William F. Weld) 
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                                                                    EXHIBIT 21.1 
 
                            SCHEDULE OF SUBSIDIARIES 
                             (in alphabetical order) 
 
 
WHOLLY OWNED SUBSIDIARIES OF THE REGISTRANT 
 
AMG Capital Corp., a Delaware Corporation 
 
AMG/Midwest Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation 
 
AMG/Midwest Holdings, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (through 
AMG/Midwest Holdings, Inc. and AMG Service Corp.) 
 
AMG New York Holdings Corp., a Delaware corporation 
 
AMG Properties LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
 
AMG/SouthwestGP Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation 
 
AMG/TBC Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation 
 
AMG Service Corp., a Delaware corporation 
 
AMG Finance Trust, a Massachusetts business trust (through AMG Service Corp.) 
 
The Burridge Group Inc., an Illinois corporation 
 
E.C. Rorer II, Inc., a Delaware corporation (through Edward C. Rorer & Co., 
Inc.) 
 
E.C. Rorer Partnership, a Delaware general partnership (through E. C. Rorer II, 
Inc. and Edward C. Rorer & Co., Inc.) 
 
Edward C. Rorer & Co., Inc., a Delaware corporation 
 
FA (DE) Acquisition Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
 
FA (WY) Acquisition Company, Inc. a Delaware corporation 
 
FCMC Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation 
 
First Quadrant Corp., a New Jersey corporation (through First Quadrant Holdings, 
Inc.) 
 
First Quadrant Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation 
 
J M H Management Corporation, a Delaware corporation 
 
Prides Crossing Holdings LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
 
Suite 3000 Holdings, Inc., a Delaware corporation 
 
TMF Corp., a Delaware corporation 
 
Welch & Forbes, Inc. a Massachusetts corporation 
 
 
ENTITIES IN WHICH THE REGISTRANT HAS A MAJORITY INTEREST (DIRECT AND INDIRECT) 
 
The Burridge Group LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (through The 
Burridge Group Inc.) 
 
Davis Hamilton Jackson & Associates, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership 
(through AMG/SouthwestGP Holdings, Inc. and AMG/TBC Holdings, Inc.) 
 
Essex Investment Management Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
(directly and through TMF Corp.) 
 
First Quadrant, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (through First Quadrant 
Corp. and First Quadrant Holdings, Inc.) 
 
First Quadrant U.K., L.P., a Delaware limited partnership (through First 
Quadrant Corp. and First Quadrant Holdings, Inc.) 
 
First Quadrant Limited, a U.K. corporation (through First Quadrant U.K., L.P., 
First Quadrant Corp. and First Quadrant Holdings, Inc.) 
 



Friess Associates, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (through FA (WY) 
Acquisition Company, Inc.) 
 
Friess Associates of Delaware, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
(through FA (DE) Acquisition Company, LLC) 
 
Frontier Capital Management Company, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
(through FCMC Holdings, Inc. and TMF Corp.) 
 
GeoCapital, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (through AMG Capital 
Corp.) 
 
Gofen and Glossberg, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company (through 
AMG/Midwest Holdings, LLC, AMG Service Corp. and AMG/Midwest Holdings, Inc.) 
 
Joint Venture Partners LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (through AMG 
Properties LLC) 
 
J.M. Hartwell Limited Partnership, a Delaware limited partnership (through J M H 
Management Corporation and AMG New York Holdings Corp.) 
 
Managers Distributors, Inc., a Delaware corporation (through The Managers Funds 
LLC and TMF Corp.) 
 
The Managers Funds LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (through TMF Corp.) 
 
The Renaissance Group LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
 
Rorer Asset Management, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (through E.C. 
Rorer Partnership, E.C. Rorer II, Inc. and Edward C. Rorer & Co., Inc.) 
 
Skyline Asset Management, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership 
 
Systematic Financial Management, L.P., a Delaware limited partnership 
 
Tweedy, Browne Company LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (through 
AMG/TBC Holdings, Inc.) 
 
Welch & Forbes LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (through Welch & 
Forbes, Inc.) 
 
 
ENTITIES IN WHICH THE REGISTRANT HAS A MINORITY INTEREST 
 
Concordia Capital Associates, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company 
 
Dublin Fund Distributors, N.V., a Netherlands Antilles limited liability company 
 
Paradigm Asset Management Company, L.L.C., a Delaware limited liability company 
(through AMG New York Holdings Corp.) 
 



 
 
                                                                    EXHIBIT 23.2 
 
 
                       CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS 
 
 
 
     We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in the Registration 
Statements of Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. on Form S-3 (File No. 
333-71561) and Form S-8 (File No. 333-72967 and File No. 333-84485) of 
Affiliated Managers Group, Inc. of our reports dated March 28, 2002, relating 
to the consolidated financial statements and financial statement schedule, 
which appear in this Annual Report on Form 10-K. 
 
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP 
Boston, Massachusetts 
March 28, 2002 
 


